


 GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, June 20, 2017 – 7:00 p.m. 
Takiff Center - Community Hall  

Consistent with the requirements of the Illinois Compiled Statutes 5 ILCS 120/1 
through 120/6 (Open Meetings Act), notices of this meeting were posted. 

Meeting Location:  Takiff Center, 999 Green Bay Road, Glencoe, IL 60022 

A G E N D A 

I. Call to Order   

II. Roll Call 

III. Consent Agenda Items 
A. Minutes of May 16, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
B. Minutes of May 16, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 
C. Minutes of June 6, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting 
D. Approval of Ordinance No. 871: Surplus Property 
E. Approval of the Bills 

IV. Matters from the Public 

V. Financial Report 

VI. Staff Reports 
A.  Business 
B. Recreation and Facilities 
C. Parks and Maintenance 
D. Marketing and Communications 
E. Safety Committee 

VII. Executive Director Report 

VIII. Action Items 
A. Approval of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Annual Audit 
B. Approval of Ordinance No. 872: An Ordinance Adopting Prevailing Wage Rates to be 

Paid to Laborers, Mechanics, and Other Workers Performing Construction of Public 
Works in the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois 

C. Approval of Public Participation Guidelines during Board and Committee Meetings 
D. Approval of Plan for Takiff Center Parking Lot to include Concept Plan A, Phase A & 

B with Concept Plan B Sustainable Element Bioswale (TYP).
E. Approval of Contract with Altamanu for Takiff Center Parking Project
F. Approval of District Park Sign Design

IX. Other Business 

X. Executive Session 
A. Personnel 5ILCS 120/2 (c)(1) 

XI. Adjournment 
The Glencoe Park District is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Individuals 
with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to 
observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or 
facilities, are asked to contact the Park District at 847-835-3030. Executive Director Email: 
lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com  



III. Consent Agenda Items
Section 2.06(b) of the Open Meetings Act allows a public entity to approve

minutes either within 30 days after the relevant meeting OR at the public body’s
second subsequent regular meeting, whichever is LATER. For consistency, all

minutes will be approved at the subsequent Regular Board Meeting.

Items on the Consent Agenda are representative of routine actions by the Board
of Directors or staff. Members of the Board of Park Commissioners are invited
and encouraged to call the Executive Director prior to the meeting with any

questions about consent agenda items.

The Board President asks for a motion to adopt the consent agenda items.
However, if any member of the Board wishes to discuss any item on the consent
agenda, for any reason whatsoever, he or she may ask that the item be removed

from the consent agenda and the President will change the agenda per the
request.

The Executive Director recommends approval of the consent agenda.

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



MINUTES OF MAY 16, 2017 SPECIAL PROJECTS AND FACILITIES COMMITTEE 
MEETING

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Andre Lerman, Chair/Commissioner Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Steve Gaines, President  Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer   Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
      Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR 
      Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
       Paul Goedjen, Takiff Manager 
Commissioners present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, Commissioner 

Members of the Public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Dan Dorfman, Josh 
Lutton

Review of Designs of Lakefront Park: Josephine Bellalta and John McManus from 
AltaManu and Jerry Pilipowicz from SMP Group Design Associates LLC, gave a 
presentation reviewing the Takiff Center Parking Concept Plan A & B and opinion of 
construction costs, which are attached to these minutes and located on our website in 
the meeting packet under transparency portal. Discussion ensued. 

Chair Lerman, based on the discussion by the Committee, directed Park District staff to 
Advance for approval Takiff Center Parking Concept Plan A; phase A and B and 
Concept B Bio swale (TYP) at June Board meeting. 

Matters from the Public: There were no matters from the public. 

Other Business:  None

Adjourn: Commissioner Lerman moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 p.m. 
Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 















DRAFT

MINUTES OF MAY 16, 2017 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. and roll was called. 

Commissioners present:  Staff present: 
Steve Gaines, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Dudley Onderdonk, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Lisa Brooks, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Andre Lerman, Commissioner Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
 Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 
Commissioner absent:   Jenny Runkel, Administrative Assistant 
Seth Palatnik, Commissioner Chris Pietrini, Program Manager 
      Liz Visteen, Program Manager 
      Stephani Briskman, Program Manager 

Members of the public in attendance who signed in or spoke:  Lane Boron, Stefanie 
Boron, Dan Dorfman, Alexandra Greenwald, Janet Lerman, Laura Lutton, Josh Lutton, 
Ann Onderdonk, Bart Schneider 

Consent Agenda:  A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to approve the 
consent agenda items as presented including Minutes of the April 13, 2017 Special 
Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting, April 18, 2017 Special Projects and Facilities 
Committee Meeting, April 18, 2017 Regular Board Meeting, May 2, 2017 Special Board 
Meeting, May 2, 2017 Committee of the Whole Meeting, and Approval of the Bills. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. Approved with a change to the April 13, 
2017 Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting to correct the motion to adjourn 
from Andre Lerman who was absent to the correct commissioner. Roll call vote taken: 
  AYES: Brooks, Lerman, Onderdonk, Gaines 
  NAYS: None 
  ABSENT: Palatnik 

Matters from the Public: There was no one wishing to address the Board.

Recognition of Retiring Commissioner: A comment was read from a former 
Commissioner Bob Kimble followed by other current Commissioner’s comments and a 
comment from Bart Schneider of the Glencoe Plan Commission. Executive Director 
Sheppard read the appreciation plaque and announced that a plaque honoring his 
service to the district would be placed on a bench or table at a park of his choice. 

Action Item: 

Approval of Commissioner Service Resolution No. 869 – Andre Lerman:  President 
Gaines read the resolution. A motion was made by Commissioner Onderdonk to 



2

approve Commissioner Service Resolution No. 869 – Andre Lerman as presented. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Brooks, Gaines, Lerman, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: Palatnik 

Comments from Retiring Commissioner – Andre Lerman:  Commissioner Lerman 
reviewed the history of his term and progress made in the last 4 years, thanked 
commissioners, commended staff, thanked the Glencoe Caucus and community for 
allowing him to serve, and thanked his family. 

Oath of Office: Stefanie Boron and Josh Lutton:  A motion was made by Commissioner 
Lerman to move the Oath of Office agenda item prior to the Recess agenda item. 
Commissioner Onderdonk seconded the motion which passed by voice vote. 

Executive Lisa Sheppard issued the Oath of Office to both Stefanie Boron and Josh 
Lutton.

Recess: A celebratory recess was held for Commissioners Lerman, Boron, and Lutton. 

Election of President and Vice-President:  Executive Director Sheppard, as Board 
Secretary, opened nominations for President of the Board. Commissioner Brooks 
nominated Commissioner Onderdonk and Commissioner Gaines seconded the 
nomination. The nomination passed by voice vote. No discussion ensued. Sheppard 
opened nominations for Vice-President of the Board. Commissioner Gaines nominated 
Commissioner Brooks, Commissioner Lutton seconded the nomination. The nomination 
passed by voice vote. 

Appointment of Officers and Representatives:  President Onderdonk made a motion to 
appoint Josh Lutton as Treasurer; Robert Bush of Ancel, Glink, Diamond, Bush, 
DiCianni, & Krafthefer as General Legal Counsel and Ethics Officer; Lisa M. Sheppard, 
Executive Director as Secretary to the Board; Dudley Onderdonk as representative to 
the Glencoe Plan Commission; and Lisa M. Sheppard and Jennifer L. Runkel as 
Freedom of Information Act Officers. Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion. No 
discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Board Committee Appointments: President Onderdonk announced the appointments 
including Chair Lutton and Members Boron, Brooks, Gaines, and Onderdonk for 
Finance Committee of the Whole; Chair Brooks and Members Boron and Gaines for 
Special Projects and Facilities Committee; and Chair Gaines and Members Brooks and 
Onderdonk for Personnel and Policy Committee.

Board Advisory and Liaison Appointments: President Onderdonk announced the 
advisory group appointments including Chair Lutton for Glencoe Beach and Lakefront 



3

Advisory Group, Chair Gaines for Watts Advisory Group, and Liaison Boron for the Early 
Childhood Advisory Group and Lisa Sheppard as the NSSRA Liaison. 

Financial Report:  Director of Finance/Human Resources Mensinger stated we are two 
month into the year. The warmer weather helped pass sales before the beach opening 
Memorial Day weekend. The internet connection has been tested to run two separate 
stations and will be up and running for this weekend. 

Staff Reports: Staff shared additional information not included in their Board Reports.

Director Mensinger shared that the first draft from the auditors will be going before the 
Board in June as well beginning talks of transferring funds to Fund 69 for Capital 
Projects.

Director Lushniak stated that the Recreation Team is busy with camp and Beach 
preparations, new technology tests with ELC parents and teachers are scheduled this 
week. They are testing three apps one week each with a wrap up from both teacher and 
parent perspectives. Discussion ensued.

Director Leiner shared that the Parks Team emphasis is on the Beach opening 
Memorial Day and spring cleanup in the parks. He also discussed the Berlin Park 
trespassing incident in which a picnic table top was set on fire. There was minor 
damage.

Manager Maassen shared that our graphic design and photography intern started today. 
Gold Medal videotaping is wrapping up this week. The video and theme will be revealed 
on June 5 to the community and Board on our website. 

The Safety Committee reported that members of the Recreation and Facilities staff are 
now CPR/AED certified for in-house training. All camp counselors and lifeguards will be 
required to be CPR/AED certified. 

Executive Director Report:  Executive Director Sheppard shared that we are a finalist for 
the NRPA National Gold Medal award. There are three other park districts from across 
the nation in our category of under 30,000 in population. The application focused on 
everything the District has done in the last three to four years. The winner will be 
revealed in September at NRPA Conference. The video will be a public education piece 
that we can educate the community on what we do. The video focuses on the three 
pillars: conservation and nature, health and wellness, and community. Our community 
of less than 9,000 will be up against communities of 30,000 or less. 

A park tour Committee of the Whole meeting is scheduled on Tuesday, June 6 at 6:30 
p.m. on the Park District bus. 

The All Staff Training will include mostly seasonal Recreation and Facilities Department 
staff. The theme is similar to IPRA’s Park Pursuit called The Pursuit of Park District 
Knowledge next Thursday from 6:30-8:00pm. 



4

This summer’s theme is Get Your Play On coinciding with NRPA’s theme. 

The Beach is closed on the Fourth of July and we have finalized an agreement with 
Winnetka for use of their beaches. Our residents will pay resident rates and pass 
holders can use their pass. 

Commissioner Onderdonk will represent the Park District on Memorial Day at 11:00am 
at Veterans Park. 

Our current email procedure is to have District emails forwarded to commissioner’s 
personal email. The second option is to load District email on personal phones using 
Exchange. Discussion ensued. If all commissioner devices may be setup with 
Exchange, then we will communicate with the Board on how to proceed. 

Presentation of the General Recreation Report: Director Lushniak and Program 
Managers Pietrini, Visteen, and Briskman presented a report on General Recreation 
Programs attached to these minutes. Discussion with the Board ensued.

Action Items: 

Approval of Commemorative Resolution No. 866 – Kathleen Kraemer:  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Gaines to approve Resolution No. 866 as presented.
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion which passed by voice vote. No discussion 
ensued.

Approval of Commemorative Resolution No. 867 –Patricia Boudreaux:  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Brooks to approve Resolution No. 867 as presented.
Commissioner Boron seconded the motion which passed by voice vote. No discussion 
ensued.

Approval of Commemorative Resolution No. 868 –Roberta Shore:  A motion was made 
by Commissioner Gaines to approve Resolution No. 868 as presented. Commissioner
Brooks seconded the motion which passed by voice vote. No discussion ensued. 

Approval of Resolution No. 870 Bank Depository Relationship – BMO Harris Bank:  A 
motion was made by Commissioner Brooks to approve Resolution No. 870 as 
presented. Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call 
vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Approval of NRPA Conference Staff Attendees and Expenses:  A motion was made by 
Commissioner Gaines to approve for five Glencoe Park District staff to attend NRPA 
Annual Congress with expenses not to exceed $8,000 as presented. Commissioner
Lutton seconded the motion. No discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 



5

 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Approval of NRPA Conference Commissioner Attendees and Expenses:  A motion was 
made by Commissioner Gaines to approve for five Commissioners to attend NRPA 
Conference with expenses paid by the district to include conference exhibit hall fee, per 
diem of $85 per day per Commissioner and a group dinner. All other expenses to be 
paid by the commissioners. Discussion ensued. Commissioner Brooks seconded the 
motion. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Approval of Tree Bid:  A motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve a three 
year contract with Nels Johnson Tree Experts based on the following hourly labor rates: 
2017 $60.00 per hour, 2018 $60.00 per hour, 2019 $65.00 per hour, and Emergency 
$75.00 per hour as presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. No 
discussion ensued. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Approval of Replacement of the Takiff Center BAS System and Electronic Controllers:  A 
motion was made by Commissioner Gaines to approve replacement of VAS System 
and Electronic Controllers from Applied Controls, Inc. not to exceed $52,000 as 
presented. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion. This is the software that runs 
our HVAC system that is eight upgrades behind and was made in Sweden. When a 
component goes down it takes 6-8 weeks to receive the replacement component. This 
agenda item includes approval of a new software package and new computer zone 
controls for the building. It does not include individual the VAB boxes in every room, 
although sorely needed. Roll call vote taken: 
 AYES:  Boron, Brooks, Gaines, Lutton, Onderdonk 
 NAYS:   None
 ABSENT: None 

Other Business: There was no other business. 

Adjourn to Closed Session: At 9:28 p.m., Commissioner Gaines moved to adjourn into 
closed session to discuss personnel as mandated by Section 2.06. 5 ILCS 120/2 (c)(1)
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Return to Open Session:  Commissioner Gaines moved to return to open session at 
10:07 p.m. Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous 
voice vote. 



6

Action taken, if any, from Executive Session: There was no action taken during or after 
closed session. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Brooks moved to adjourn the meeting at 10:08 p.m. 
Commissioner Gaines seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

                   
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary 



G
F

5

Gen
Fiscal Yea

5/16/2017

eral
ar 2016-17

l Re
7

ecrea

Michae
Liz Vis
Stepha
Chris P

atio

el Lushniak
steen – Man
ani Briskma
Pietrini – M

on Re

k – Director
nager of Sp
an – Manag

Manager of A

epo

r of Recreat
pecial Event
ger of Youth
Athletics &

rt

tion and Fa
ts & Adults
h and Arts

& Teen Camp

acilities

p



Gen
Fiscal Y

Introd
The Glenc
of program
programs
before and
has the gr
like cooki
industry t

The follow
basis of th
each sub-
program a

Gener
Marketing
sent out th
brochure
displayed
webpage w
of their Pa

In additio
display ad
programs
Twitter, In
and new p
patrons u
may recei
or cerami
other art c

42% of res
mouth. Kn
teams tak
to our par
staff is exp
messages

neral
Year 2016-17

uction
coe Park Distr
mming more
” that would b
d after school
reatest potent
ng classes, tec

trends and me

wing report w
his report will
category with
area or things

ral Recre
g for general r
hree times pe
as their prim
as a flipbook

with details o
ark District in

on, staff uses T
dvertising me
. Staff also us
nstagram, and
programs. Pro
sing email bla
ve email notif
cs participant
classes.  

sidents find o
nowing this, o

ke extra care in
rticipants. In 
pected to resp
promptly in r

Recr
7

rict offers a w
so than the ge
be considered
l care, and da
tial to be on th
chnology clas
eet the needs

will provide an
l follow a SWO
hin general re
s that make a

eation Pr
recreation pro

er year in fall,
ary way to lea

k and downloa
n the season’

nformation.  

TV screens at
ssages for new

ses boosted so
d Facebook to
ograms are al
asts; for exam
fications abou
ts may receive

out about prog
our customer
n providing e
addition to in
pond to email
relation to sp

reatio

wide variety of
eneral recreat
d the staple of
nce programs
he cutting edg
sses, and yout
of the commu

n overview of o
OT (strengths
creation prog
program area

rogram M
ograms is don
winter, and s

arn about upc
adable PDF on
s offerings. O

 Watts and Ta
w or low-enro
ocial media po
o advertise low
so cross-mark

mple, tennis pa
ut other sport
e email notifi

grams from w
service and r
xcellent custo

n-person custo
l and social m
ecific program

on Re

f programs in
tion program
f most park d
s.  However, t
ge of innovati
th fitness clas
unity.  

one of the lar
s, weaknesses
gramming as w
a special or ca

Marketing
ne primarily t
spring. Over 8
coming progra
n our website

Over 50% of re

akiff to 
ollment
osts on 
w-enrollment
keted to 
articipants
ting programs
cations about

word of 
recreation
omer service
omer service,

media
ms.

eport

n its portfolio.
mming.  This a
districts such a
this area of th
ive and uniqu
sses have been

rgest program
s, opportuniti
well as uniqu
arry a good re

g
through the se
87% of reside
ams and even

e, and each pr
esidents attrib

t

s
t

,

t

  No area sho
area offers mo
as athletics le
he Recreation
ue program of
n added to cap

mming areas in
ies, and threa

ue characterist
eputation in th

easonal broch
nts cite the P

nts. The seaso
rogram catego
bute the webs

ows the versat
ore “traditiona
eagues and cla
n Department
fferings.  Thin
pitalize on 

n the agency.
ts) Analysis fo
tics of each 
he communit

hures, which a
ark District 

onal brochure
ory has its ow
site to the sou

1

tility
al
asses,
also

ngs

 The
for

ty.

are

e is 
wn
urce



2

618 686
762

253 260 280

0

200

400

600

800

1000

2014 2015 2016

N
et

Pr
of

it

Year

Atheltic Class Participation

Classes Leagues

Some of our programs, like Broadway Bound, require more in-depth marketing. For example, marketing 
staff provides publicity materials and set-up online ticket sale webpages to promote Broadway Bound’s 
annual production. This includes email blasts, flyers, posters for local businesses, and social media 
promotion, as well as arranging for media coverage of the production.  

Athletic Classes
Program Overview
Athletic classes are offered indoors year 
round at Takiff Center, South School, 
West School, and Central School.  
Outdoor programming takes place at 
Watts Park, Takiff and other park 
districts when programming 
cooperatively with other agencies.  
Classes serve ages 3 to adult, with the 
highest participation rates being 
Kindergarten to 2nd grade classes, 
primarily held at South School.  Classes 
have seen growth at younger ages due 
to full day kindergarten in Glencoe.  
Staff anticipates strong numbers to 
continue as participants are starting 
program participation at younger ages which will allow a better chance of retaining participation and will 
allow for direct marketing to keep participants enrolling session after session. 

Popular Classes/Program Strengths 
The most popular contractual athletic program is Karate.  Pride Dojo is the contractual company that 
instructs classes at the Takiff Center.  Classes are offered on Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays and 
Saturdays.  Participation and revenue have continued to increase as staff works with Pride Dojo to 
optimize class times, work together on program marketing, and continue to try new classes.  

The most popular Glencoe Park District staff led class is Little Sportsters, a sports variety class for 
children in grades K-2.  It is offered on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Fridays at South School and on 
Wednesdays at Takiff.  Many of the children sign up for the class based on our instructors, Coach Jon and 
Coach Miriam who have built a strong reputation in the community as being exceptional instructors.  The 
class provides a wide variety of sports for the participants, who often get to vote on what sport to play each 
day.

Program Staffing/Contractor  
Chris Pietrini, Program Manager of Sports, Athletics and Teen Camps, oversees the Athletics Classes.  
Staff coaches Jon, Miriam, Terry, and Lonnie run all of the Little Sportsters, SNAG Golf, basketball clinics 
and After School Soccer/Basketball.  Tennis programs are taught by Coaches Tim Hibben, Darius Ivaska 
and Chuck Johnson.  Pride Dojo provides all karate instruction, with Sensei Marla, Sensei Jeff, and Sensei 
Mike all instructing classes for the District for over 15 years.  Athletics class contractor Hot Shots provides 
instruction in Flag Football, Little Dribblers Basketball, Volleyball, Tumbling, Dodgeball, and Hockey.  
Hot Shots Sports coaches are among the best in the area and provide valuable introductions to sports for 
younger participants as well as fun classes for older participants.   Marek Stepien provides fencing 



instructio
disc golf a
Baseball A
new end o

Challeng
Challenge
during ba
capacity a
accommo
challenge
Districts,
programm
participan

Staff and 
classes to
spring, wh
program.

Financia
Participat
762 in 20
additiona
season ba
preseason

Along with
$87,689 i
expand to

on and continu
and continual
Academy, ano
of season sum

ges and Are
es for athletics
asketball seaso
and had waitli
date the dem
.  There is als
but private co

ming, but staff
nts and stay c

contractors w
keep particip

hich reached 
 The variety i

al/Participa
tion numbers
16.  This has b
l programmin

asketball clinic
n clinic drew 3

h participatio
n 2016.  To co

o in order to d

ually introduc
ly challenges

other contract
mmer baseball

eas of Grow
s classes inclu
on, which is a
ists; staff was

mand, but incre
o significant o
ompanies as w
ff maintains a
ompetitive wi

work together
pants involved
capacity, and
in athletics pr

ation Trend
have shown a

been attribute
ng, such as pr
c (from 2015-
36 boys and g

on, net profit h
ontinue these

drive profit an

ces new game
participants

tual company
l program.

wth
ude limited am
a peak gym us
s fortunately a
eased particip
outside comp
well.  Most pe
high focus to

ith other athl

to follow tren
d and returnin

d also added F
rogramming h

ds
a healthy incr
ed to both an
reseason and
-16 season) ha
girls. 

has increased
e strong upwa
nd participatio

es to the class
through game

y, conducts M

mount of spac
se time.  This y
able to move p
pant will cont

petition in the
eople do prefe
o ensure quali
etic options o

nds and offer
ng.  This seas

Floor Hockey t
has helped reg

begi
offer
Trai
othe
Dist

Staff
to of
2017
amo
instr
popu
hope
High
and

rease in recen
increase in p
postseason ba
ad 29 particip

d from $65,16
ard trends, sta
on in Glencoe

s to aid in lear
es and simula

Mini Majors pr

ce for program
year, two Litt
participants t
tinue to be an
e athletics spa
er to stay loca
ity programm
on the North S

new classes o
son staff adde
to the After S
gain strong n
inning to decl
r classes such
ning in an att

erwise only be
trict setting.

ff is working w
ffer a coopera
7-18.  Volleyb
ong junior hig
ructional clas
ular.  By addi
eful to form 2
hland Park, W
Lake Forest.

nt years, from
participation f
asketball clin

pants and the

66 in 2014 to $
aff will contin
e Park District

rning.  Christi
ated competit
rograms and E

mming indoo
tle Sportsters
to different da
n area of grow
ace from not o
al to for after s

ming in order t
Shore. 

or improveme
ed a Flag Foot
School Soccer/
numbers in a p
line.  Staff is a

h as Speed, Ag
tempt to offer
e offered outs

with surround
ative youth vo
ball is increasi
gh age student
ss offerings ha
ing a league co
2-3 teams to c
Winnetka, Wil

m 618 in 2014 t
for current cla

nics. New for 2
e 2016-17 trav

$71,233 in 20
nue to look for
ct athletics cla

ian Eck teach
tion.  Illinois 
Extra Innings

ors, especially
 classes reach
ays to 

wth as well as 
only other Par
school
to retain 

ent on existin
tball class in t
/Basketball
program that
also beginning
gility and Stre
r classes that
side of the Par

ding commun
olleyball leagu
ingly popular
ts, but 
ave not been 
omponent, st

compete along
lmette, Deerfi

to 686 in 201
asses as well s
2016, the post

vel basketball

015 and finally
r new areas to

asses.

3

hes

s, a 

hed

a
rk

ng
the

was
g to 

ength
may
rk

nities
ue for 

taff is 
gside
ield

15 to 
some 
t-

y
o



Athlet
Program
Athletic le
be popula
years.  Sta

Popular
Boys Bask
Basketbal
have the h
programs
coaches, C
Terry.  Th
over the p
standings
have been
competiti
grade boy
league par
Highland
traveling t

Program
Chris Piet
house bas
The Adult
Robinson

Challeng
The bigge
facilities a
different p
least five o
have come
buy team
players.

Staff is att
is not high
forward su

Financia
Participat
in 2016-17
increasing
especially

tic Leagu
m Overview

eagues consis
ar sports throu
aff is looking f

Classes/Pr
ketball (Grade
ll (Boys and G
highest partic
 continue to b

Coach Jon, Co
he league has b
past two years
s and ongoing
n upgraded an
on has been i

ys and girls.  F
rticipants wil
Park, Lake F
trophy for the

m Staffing/C
trini, Program
sketball teams
t Softball prog
.

ges and Are
est challenge t
and programs
price points to
other indepen
e to mind for
colored shoes

tempting to a
h enough to r
uch as indoor

al/Participa
tion has rema
7.  Overall lea
g to $59,759 i

y Travel Baske

ues

t of house bas
ughout the Ch
for ways to re

rogram Stre
es 3-6) and Pe

Girls Grades 1
cipation.  Stre
be the outstan
oach Miriam,
become more

s with online s
g coaches train
nd cross comm
ncreased for 

For the 2017-1
l be playing g
orest, and De
e tournament

Contractor
m Manager of
s are coached
gram is overs

eas of Grow
that exists for
s open every s
o draw recrea
ndent travel p
improving th
s and bags, an

add a Men’s 50
un the progra
r volleyball, sa

ation Trend
ained steady, w
ague, net prof
in 2016-17.  T
etball, where s

sketball, trave
hicagoland ar
evitalize that a

engths 
ee Wee
-2) continue t
ngths of thos

nding clinic 
and Coach 

e organized 
scheduling,
ning.  Uniform
munity 
5th and 6th

18 season, 
games against
eerfield, with a
t champions.

Athletics, Spo
d by volunteer

een by long ti

wth 
r our basketba
season.  The p
ational player
programs.  Th
he participant
nd implement

0+ Softball Le
am.  Staff will
and volleyball

ds
with 253 part
fit dropped fro

This is partly a
staff raised th

el basketball,
rea.  Adult sof
area of progra

to
e

ms

t
a

orts and Teen
r parents.  Tra
ime Glencoe P

all leagues is m
private sector
rs into compet
hrough playin
t experience in
ting an option

eague in sprin
l look to intro
l, and basketb

ticipants in 20
om $43,430 i
attributable to
he maximum 

and adult sof
ftball has been
amming.

n Camps, over
avel basketbal
Park District

maintaining a
continues to

titive leagues
g in tournam
ncludes provi
nal skills day

ng 2017, howe
oduce other ad
ball.

014-15, increa
in 2014-15 to
o increased pa
number of pl

ftball.  Basket
n in decline fo

rsees the athl
ll is coached b
staff member

a strong progr
offer similar
.  In this area

ments this past
iding nicer un
each week to

ever at this po
dult athletics

asing to 260 i
$40,795 in 20
articipation in
layers on a tea

tball continue
or a number o

letics leagues.
by paid coach
r Everett 

ram while new
programs at 

a alone, there
t season, idea
niforms, optio
o further devel

oint participa
leagues movi

n 2015-16 an
015-16, befor
n programs, 
am from 10 to

4

es to
of

.  All
hes.

w

are at
as that
ons to 
lop

ation
ing

d 280 
e

o 12. 



Athlet

space at R
with Unde

Challeng
Challenge
transition
be maxim
over prog

Financia
Field Ren
in 2016-17
time and m
worked ar

Teen P
Program
The teen p
(age 10-14
Babysitter
Park Distr
High Proj
Open Mic
family bas

Popular
Our teen p
Red Cross
District w
a Red Cro

tic Field

Reinsdorf Fiel
er Armour rep

ges and Are
es include kee
ned to using R

mized over tim
rammed resu

al/Participa
tal revenue w
7.  This is mos
material costs
round both Pa

Program
m Overview

program area
4). Programs t
r’s Training, a
rict also coop
ect (GJHP) in

c & Karaoke N
sed groups wi

Classes/Pr
program has 
s Babysitter’s

will now be tea
oss instructor,

Rentals

ld. While only
presentatives

eas of Grow
eping fields in
RecTrac to sch
me as usage pa
ulting in incre

ation Trend
was $31,173 in

stly driven by
s.  Field renta
ark District an

s

a consists of a
that are offer
a Teen Ski Tri
eratively pres
ncluding GJH

Night.   The Gl
ithin the com

rogram Stre
seen growth i
Training. Thi

aching this cla
, however due

y a small abou
s to grow this

wth
n good conditi
hedule the fiel
atterns are an
ased time spe

ds
n 2014-15, incr
y AYSO and G
als fluctuate w
nd affiliate gr

variety of pro
ed include on
ip, Snowshoe
sents several e

HP Beach Bash
lencoe Park D

mmunity such

engths 
in the past ye
is class has be
ass in-house.
e to increasing

A

A

ut of time is b
program in th

ion and sched
lds and track
alyzed.  Time
ent on field m

reased to $39
GBA totals, wh
with outside g
roup schedule

ograms and e
ne day classes
ing Essentials
events and pr
h, Pokémon S

District also w
as Glencoe Yo

ar.  One of th
een steadily g
Prior to this s
g fees and dec

Program Ov
Athletic Field
groups as we
costs by affili
Association a
Organization
that have use
include Scott
Football, Gle
Team One La

Popular Cla
In spring 201
The Lights Fl

being rented t
he future.

duling fields a
time used.  B

e can also be t
maintenance.

9,005 in 2015
hich are billed
groups as sche
es.

events geared
s and worksho
s, and Emerg
rograms in co
Scavenger Hu

works to collab
outh Services

he fastest grow
gaining popul
season, staff h
creasing avail

verview
d Rentals incl
ell as reimburs
iates Glencoe
and American
n - Glencoe.  O
ed the field in
tish Soccer, N
ncoe Gladiato

acrosse. 

asses/Progr
17-18, Under A
lag Football w
this year, staf

appropriately.
By doing this,
tracked to ens

5-16, then dec
d to break eve
edules change

towards 5th th
ops such as Am
gency Prepare
onjunction wit
unt, Teen Ice N
borate with ot
s.

wing program
arity so much
had contracte
lability, staff 

ude outside
sement for di
Baseball

n Youth Socce
Outside group
 the past few

North Shore Yo
ors Baseball, 

ram Streng
Armour Unde

will be renting
ff hopes to wo

.  Staff has 
empty hours

sure fields are

reased to $34
en based on st
e and must be

hrough 8th gr
merican Red

edness classes
th Glencoe Ju
Night, and Te
ther teen and

ms is the Amer
h so that the P
ed this progra
has obtained

5

irect

er
ps
years
outh 
and

gths 
er
g
ork

can
e not

4,879
taff
e

raders
Cross

s. The
unior
een
d

rican
Park
am to 

the 



necessary
with GJH
Teen Ice N
create a b
participan

the summ
are also ot
fencing, h

Program
Liz Vistee
falling un
employee
Red Cross
taught by

Challeng
The bigge
programs
teens they
programm
facilities,

Financia
Teen prog
increase in
Hunt. The
has been i
Glencoe P
savings fo
events/pr

y certifications
P.  In additio

Night that too
uzz in the com

nts for a teen

mer.  Both Acti
ther teen prog

house basketb

m Oversight
en, Program M
der other pro
s including Li
s in which the
a Park Distri

ges and Are
est challenge f
. Since GJHP

y serve. By pa
ming and colla
resources, an

al/Participa
grams are tren
n enrollment
e biggest reas
instrumental

Park District a
or the District
rograms with

s to teach it in
n to offering e

ok place at the
mmunity for t
event on reco

ion Quest cam
grams offered

ball, wheel thr

Manager of Sp
ogram areas. T
iz and GJHP

ey provided an
ct employee.

eas of Grow
for teen progr

P and GYS wor
artnering with
aborate to pro

nd expertise th

ation Trend
nding up in p
including Ba
on for growth
in promoting

and held in Pa
t. The Park Di
GJHP.

nternally.  Sta
events like an
e Watts Ice Ce
this event. Ov
ord.

mp for 6th-9th

d in other are
rowing (ceram

pecial Events 
The programs
representativ
n instructor. S
    

wth
ramming is ex
rk with this a

h GHJP, the P
ovide bigger a
hat the Glenco

ds
articipation a

abysitter’s Tra
h in teen even
g and encoura
ark District fa
istrict is comm

aff has also pu
n Open-Mic n
enter. Staff w
ver 60 teens a

One
stre
Dist
Thr
mor
bein
past
this
join
teen
Glen

Wh
imp
offe

graders have
as of the recre

mics), dance, k

& Active Adu
s/events offer
ves. Previous B
Starting in M

xposure and i
ge group dire

Park District h
and better eve
oe Park Distri

and revenue. S
aining classes,
nts is the colla
aging enrollm
acilities. They
mitted to buil

ut a focus on o
night, staff has
was able to wo
attended this s

e of the teen p
engths is the p
trict and Glen

rough this mu
re teen progra
ng offered to t
t. The Park D

s relationship
nt programs a
n participatio
ncoe Park Dis

hile camps are
portant to not
ers two incred
e grown in pop
eation depart
karate, and th

ults, oversees t
red are prima
Babysitter Tr
ay 2017, Baby

increasing enr
ectly, they hav
hopes to build
ents for the te
rict has to offe

Several teen p
, Teen Ice Nig

aborative part
ment for teen e
y also staff eve
lding on this p

offering more
s seen very str
rk with GJHP
special event;

programming
partnership b
ncoe Junior H
utually benefic
ams and spec
this age group

District will co
 with GJHP a

and special ev
on and facility
strict. 

e not a focus o
te that the Gle
dibly successfu
pularity over
tment includi
heater classes

teen specific p
arily staffed by
raining classes
ysitter Trainin

rollment in P
ve a strong rel
d awareness o
een communi
er.      

programs/eve
ght and the Po
tnership with
events that ar
ents which pr
partnership to

e drop-in prog
rong success
P to promote
; the most 

g areas greate
between the P
High Project.
cial partnersh

cial events are
p than in year

ontinue to fost
and explore m
vents to increa
y use at the

of this report,
encoe Park Di
ful teen camps
last year.  The

ing cheer clas
s.

programming
y Park Distric
s were offered
ng classes wil

ark District
lationship wit

of teen 
ty utilizing th

ents exhibited
okémon Scav
 GJHP. This g

re organized b
ovides a cost
o offer more 

6

grams
with
and

st
ark

hip,
e
rs
ter

more
ase

 it is
istrict
s in 
ere
s,

g not
ct
d by
ll be

th the 

he

d an
venger 
group
by the 



7

197

310
337

0
50

100
150
200
250
300
350
400

2014 2015 2016

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n
Year

Ceramics/Visaul Arts Participation

Visual Arts – Youth Ceramics
Program Overview
The youth ceramics program area 
includes hand building and wheel 
throwing classes for children in grades 
Kindergarten through 8th Grade. Several 
types of classes are offered based on age 
and skill level:  

Ceramics – All Levels (K-2nd Grade), 
Ceramics-All Levels (3rd-4th Grade), 
Ceramics-Intermediate (3rd-4th Grade), 
Wheel Throwing-All Levels (5th-8th

Grade), and Wheel Throwing-
Intermediate (5th-8th Grade).

In Ceramics classes, children learn and 
use hand-building techniques to create functional and sculptural pieces. In Wheel Throwing, children 
learn the basics of using a pottery wheel and as they progress build upon their existing skills to continue to 
create more complex forms and projects.     

Popular Classes/Program Strengths 
The most popular ceramics classes are the Ceramics-All Levels (K-2nd Grade). These classes fill quickly on 
the first day of registration and typically have a waitlist. Because of the very high demand and popularity 
of these classes, staff created additional Ceramic-All Levels (K-2nd Grade) sections beginning in fall 2016.  

One of the program strengths is the loyal participants of the program. Many ceramics students begin 
classes at a young age and continue to progress and grow in the program to intermediate level classes. 
Another strength of the program is the popularity of the K-2nd Grade classes. Staff is hopeful that these 
young students will remain and grow in the program as others have done. 

Program Staffing/Contractor  
Liz Visteen, Program Manager of Special Events & Active Adults, oversees ceramic programming. 
Ceramics classes are taught by highly qualified Park District employees. Natalie Steinmetz is the Park 
District’s Ceramic Coordinator and works closely with Liz to ensure the program and studio are at their 
best for children to create and explore. Natalie has been a strong asset in recruiting additional qualified 
staff members and bringing a sense of credibility to the program because of her reputation.      

Challenges and Areas of Growth
The biggest challenge for the ceramics program is limited space and times to offer youth classes. Parents 
prefer class times immediately after school; however, ceramics classes can only accommodate 9-10 
students per class because of space, which results in waitlists. Weekend classes have been offered with 
very little interest, so a focus on finding other appropriate times for classes remains at the forefront.  Staff 
has also identified the art room across the hall from the ceramics studio as a potential location for 
ceramics expansion.          



Financia
Net profit
seeing an
District ad
participan
limitation

Visual
Program
The visua
in this are
After Scho
famous ar
mixed me
mediums.
Kim class
recycled m

Popular
The most
registratio
workshop
and contin
Bloomber
which has

arts classe
classes th

al/Participa
t and particip
increase in p

dded more yo
nts. While the
ns, continued

 Arts- Dr
m Overview

l arts program
ea begin for ki
ool Art Club a
rtists as they t
edia such as ti
. This class is
encourages s

materials are u

Classes/Pr
popular class

on and typica
ps. One of the
nued to grow
rg, who has be
s given her a r

es that might
at remain so p

ation Trend
ation in Ceram
articipation; h

outh classes in
e increase in p
increase may

rawing/P

m at the Glenc
indergarten a
are offered for
try to recreate
ie dye, paint p
offered for st

students to ex
used to create

rogram Stre
s in visual arts
lly has a waitl
strengths of t
throughout t

een able to cr
reputation as

help expose s
popular.  

ds
mics program
however, the

n fall 2016 wh
participation a
y be possible t

Painting

coe Park Dist
age students t
r students in k
e their own ve
pottery, and c
tudents in kin
xplore a wide
e stunning ma

engths 
s is Crafting w
list. Since this
this program
the program. A
eate an adapt
a strong instr

students to ne

ms are trendin
greater incre

hich resulted i
and profit wil
through new c

rict consists o
hrough stude
kindergarten
ersions of the
canvas paintin
ndergarten thr
variety of cra
asterpieces. 

with Kim. Thi
s class is so p
is the loyal pa
Another stren
table curriculu
ructor throug

Program
Stephani B
Arts, supe
ceramics.
contractu
Joy of Cre
Sunshine
Sunshine
contractu

Challeng
The bigge
offering n
wish to co
same time
for the firs
to look to
classes. S

ew artistic exp

ng up. Both yo
ease comes fro
in the ability t
ll plateau in th
class offering

of drawing, pa
ents in 5th gra

through 3rd g
ese masterpiec
ng to expose s
rough 2nd gra

aft supplies. D

is class fills qu
popular, staff h

articipants. M
ngth of this pr
um to her stu

ghout the com

m Staffing/C
Briskman, Pr
ervises all visu
 All of these c
ally. Carole P

eativity, overs
Arts and Craf
Amazing Art
ally instructs

ges and Are
est challenge f
new and exciti
ontinue throu
e, appeal to th
st time. The v
introduce dif

Staff will be in
periences whi

outh and adul
om youth pro
to accommod
he near futur
s at different

ainting and cr
de. Painting c

grade. This cla
ces. Sunshine
students to di
ade. Finally, th
Duct tape, Mod

uickly on the
has added spr

Many have sta
rogram is the

udent’s interes
mmunity.

Contractor
rogram Mana
ual arts classe
classes are sta

Pearlman, an i
sees the After
fts contractua
 and Kim Blo
Crafting with

eas of Grow
for the visual
ing projects fo

ugh the progra
he students w
visual arts ins
fferent mediu

nvestigating a
ile maintainin

lt ceramics ar
ograms. The P
date more 
re due to spac

dates/times.

rafts. Enrichm
classes such a
ass learns abo
e Amazing Art
ifferent art
he Crafting w
dge Podge an

first day of 
ring and sum

arted in 3rd gr
e instructor, K
sts and streng

ger of Youth a
es outside of
affed
instructor wit
School Art C

ally staffs 
omberg 

h Kim. 

wth 
arts program
or students w
am and at the

who are enroll
structors cont
ums into their
additional visu
ng the core ac

8

re
Park

ce

ments 
as the 
out
t uses

with
nd

mmer 
ade

Kim
gths

and

th the 
Club. 

m is 
who
e
ing

tinue
r art
ual 
cts



9

509

524

534

490

500

510

520

530

540

2014 2015 2016

To
ta

lP
ar

tic
ip

an
ts

Year

Performing Arts Participation

Financial/Participation Trends 
Comparing the visual arts participation over the past 3 years, staff has seen a positive increase in 
participation. In 2014, 197 students participated in visual arts programs. In 2015, 310 students 
participated in visual arts programs and in 2016, 337 students participated. Along with a positive increase 
in participation, we’ve seen a positive increase in net profit. In the 2014-15 fiscal year, net profit was 
$35,994, in 2015-16 our net profit was $48,924 and in 2016-17 our net profit was $49,452.  Strong trends 
in these programs again relate to the strong following that many of the arts classes have built in the 
community.  

Performing Arts
Program Overview
The performing arts program area 
consists of both dance and theater 
programs.  Enrichments in this area 
begin for preschool aged students as 
young as age two up through dance and 
theater classes for students in 8th grade.
Theater programs begin with 
introductory Footlighter classes that 
transition up to Broadway Bound once 
participants enter 3rd grade.  After 
participants graduate from that 
program in 5th grade, older participants 
have the opportunity to do an 
improvisation class or a new class 
focusing on continuing to develop student’s abilities as actors and actresses.  

The dance program begins serving participants at age three up through 8th grade.  This program offers a 
progressive learning model where participants graduate up through classes by age and ability.  Dance 
classes offered include ballet, contemporary dance, hip-hop, jazz, musical theater dance, choreography, 
and combination classes.  Many of these classes culminate with a performance at the end of each session.   

Popular Classes/Program Strengths 
The most popular class in performing arts is Broadway Bound.  This class is for 3rd-5th graders and has 
become so popular that it is now offered on Mondays and Tuesdays.  Participants learn all that goes into a 
theater production and spend the class session preparing and practicing for an end of session musical 
production that takes place at the Winnetka Community House. This class, as well as the other 
performing arts classes carry a strong reputation in the community thanks to the longstanding contractor 
and qualified staff members who execute the programs.  

Program Staffing/Contractor  
Stephani Briskman, Program Manager of Youth and Arts, oversees performing arts.  All of these classes 
are staffed contractually.  Helen Boris oversees all of the dance programs as well as the Broadway Bound 
classes.  As of fall 2016, Sarah Hall has taken over as the contractor who executes theater classes.   



Challeng
The perfo
sector. W
District an
North Sho
close prox
Glencoe in
North Sho
Dance, So
Dance Inc
Lehman S
Performin

Despite pr
company
opportuni
growth ex
performin
program.
exists to e
dance team
performin

Financia
Comparin
has seen a
there was
competitiv
Glencoe P
lower net
the 2015-1

STEM
Program
Glencoe P
instructio
of Science
Math. Enr
kindergar
students i
with “Intr
skills that
transition
Design or
Legos, com
experimen

ges and Are
rming arts sp

Writers Theate
nd independe
ore and in
ximity to
ncluding
ore School of
oul to Sole
c., and the 
School of 
ng Arts.   

rivate
competition,
ity for 

xists in the
ng arts 
 Potential

expand progra
m.  In additio

ng arts contra

al/Participa
ng the past thr
a slight increa
a total of 524

ve in our area
Park District p

revenue desp
16 fiscal year,

Classes (
m Overview
Park District S
on and progra
e, Technology
richments in 
rten aged stud
in 6th grade. S
ro to STEM” c
t build upon e
n to classes su
r STEM Challe
mputers, and
nts to learn m

eas of Grow
pace is very co
er continues to
ently.  There a

am offerings f
on, while the G
actors, the pot

ation Trend
ree years of p
ase in particip
4 and in 2016
a, staff ensure
programs.   Th
pite higher en
, our net profi

(Science

STEM classes
mming in the

y, Engineering
this are for 

dents through
STEM Classes
classes that te
each other to
ch as Video G
enge. Student
hands on sci

more about the

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n

wth
ompetitive wit
o offer youth
are also a num

for dance clas
Glencoe Park
tential exists t

ds
articipation, t

pation each ye
a total of 534

es class fees ar
his has led to

nrollment.  In
it was $73, 31

e, Techno

 offer 
e areas 
g and 

h
s begin
each

Game
ts use 
ence
e area 

0
50

100
150
200
250

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n

STE

th numerous
programming

mber of privat

sses to offer d
District is ex

to have these

the performin
ear. In 2014 th
4 participants
re competitiv
some lower p
the 2014-15 f

13 and in last

ology, En

161

2014

EM Class

options avail
g both in conj
te and well re

disciplines suc
xtremely happ

programs be

ng arts progra
here was a tot

s. Due to the p
ve to help enco
prices for this
fiscal year our
fiscal year ou

ngineeri

211

2015
Year

s Partici

lable locally in
junction with

espected danc

ch as tap danc
py with its rela
e run internall

am at the Gle
tal of 509 par
performing ar
ourage enroll

s year which h
r next profit w

ur net profit w

ng, Math

19

201

pation

n the private
h the Glencoe
ce studios on t

ce or a compe
ationships wi
ly in the futur

ncoe Park Dis
rticipants, in 2
rts space bein
lment in the
has resulted in
was $64,700.
was $54, 458.

h)

10

97

16

Park
the

etitive 
ith
re. 

strict
2015

ng so

n
In



11

311

201 205

0
100
200
300
400

2014 2015 2016

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n

Year

General Interest Class Participation

of STEM. Students are also encouraged to work in groups to develop problem solving skills and encourage 
communication while growing their knowledge based in these subjects.  

Popular Classes/Program Strengths 
The most popular class in the STEM program area is Jedi Engineering. This class taps in to the growing 
love of Star Wars combined with structure building. This class is for students in kindergarten through 2nd

grade. Students learn basic engineering principles by creating different structures with Legos based on the 
Star Wars theme. As children progress in this class, instructors begin to integrate small motors and 
catapults to challenge the class.   

Program Staffing/Contractor  
Stephani Briskman, Program Manager of Youth and Arts, oversees STEM Classes. These classes are 
staffed contractually through two contractual companies that specialize in STEM programming:  
Computer Explorers and Play-Well TEKnologies. 

Challenges and Areas of Growth
Challenges with this area are that popular classes fill up quickly.  The most popular classes are the Jedi 
Engineering and Mine Craft classes. These classes fill on the first day of registration and often have a 
waitlist. Staff works with contractors to increase class maximums or add additional sections to 
accommodate the growing number of students interested in these classes whenever possible. Staff has 
added additional Mine Craft classes beginning in the fall of 2016.   

STEM programming is a newer section of Park District programming and staff continues to find its place 
in this market.  Staff has found that participation for children who are in 3rd grade or older has decreased. 
Because of that, staff has continuing to try to offer classes that peak participant’s interest or create 
opportunities for both introductory and advanced skill levels.  

Financial/Participation Trends 
Staff has seen small increases and dips in STEM class participation since 2014 while the overall trend has 
remained stable. In 2014, there were 161 students participating in STEM classes. In 2015 that number 
increased to 211 students, and in 2016 it shrunk slightly to 197. Looking our net profit, staff has seen a 
similar pattern to class participation. In 2014-15, net profit was $23,781. In 2015-16 our next profit 
increased to $28,611 and in 2016-17 we saw a decrease to $24,785.  Staff is optimistic that new class 
offerings that keep pace with new trends will bring enrollment increases.  

General Interest 
Program Overview
General interest programs consist of 
a variety of classes geared towards 
students in kindergarten through 7th

grade. Programs offered include 
Chess Class, Sticky Fingers Cooking, 
Magic Class, and Cheer. These classes 
are offered at the Takiff Center as 
well as South and West Schools.   



12

28 40 69

378 369

831

0

500

1000

2014 2015 2016

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n

Year

School Day Off & Kid's Club Participation

Kid's Club School Day Off

Popular Classes/Program Strengths 
The general interest class that has seen a strong increase in enrollment over the past year is Chess 
Scholars. This class consistently reaches class maximums.  Last year, staff worked with the Chess class 
contractor to significantly increase the class maximums at South School to allow to more students to 
enroll. Students learn the ins and outs of the game of chess and are paired up weekly with students of 
similar ability, and play games. At the end of their first session, students receive a chess set to take home 
to play with family and friends outside of class. 

Another strength in this area is the Park District’s ability to expose students to many different learning 
opportunities. Working with South and West Schools, allows greater enrollment in classes because 
students are able to easily get to class after their school day.   

Program Staffing/Contractor  
Stephani Briskman, Program Manager of Youth and Arts, oversees general interest classes. All general 
interest classes are overseen contractually by the following companies: Chess Scholars, Magic by Gary 
Kantor, Sticky Fingers Cooking, and Chicago Loves Dance. 

Challenges and Areas of Growth
There are many program options available to students at the Glencoe Park District. As a result of this wide 
variety of classes available, some enrollment fluctuates from class to class and session to session. Staff is 
currently conducting an analysis of the entire enrichment schedule offer classes in an effective and 
strategic manner throughout the week.  Adjusting class times, days, and age groups may allow students to 
participate in more classes instead of having to choose one over the other based on scheduling.   

Financial/Participation Trends 
There has been a decrease in our general interest classes from 2014 until 2016. In 2014, 311 students 
participated in general interest classes. In 2015, there was a decrease of 106 students participating in 
general interest classes. In 2016, participation remained consistent with 205 enrollments. The dip from 
2014 to 2015 is attributed to full day Glencoe kindergarten, which began in the fall of 2015, leading to the 
transition of many of these classes to preschool enrichments.  The general interest net profit has not 
followed the same trend as enrollment.  Net profit has seen a strong increase in the past year.  This is due 
to the introduction of new programs such as Sticky Fingers and Mini Cheer, along with increasing class 
maximums in Chess Scholars. 

Kid’s Club & School Day Off Programs 
Program Overview
Before and After School Care, known as Kids 
Club, is available for children in grades 
kindergarten through 6th grade. Parents are 
able to enroll their children in this program for 
two, three, four or five days a week for both pre 
and post school childcare and activities. New in 
2016, the Kids Club program was relocated to 
the Watts Center. South School children are 
walked to and from school every day by a Kids 



Club teach
pink route
bus transp

The Glenc
District 35
an option
either spe

Popular
This progr
has compl
outdoor g
drop off th
work with
and large
for childre
their frien

One of the
participan

Program
Stephani B
Programs
staff as we
off progra

Challeng
The bigge
older end
be with fr
encourage
program i
been a cha

her, and West
e bus through
portation for

coe Park Distr
5. Students ca
for before an

ent doing gam

Classes/Pr
ram was crea
leted. Howev

gross motor pl
heir children

h students to g
group activiti
en during the

nds outside of

e program’s g
nts to particip

m Staffing/C
Briskman, Pr

s. All of these
ell as supplem
ams during th

ges and Are
est challenge f

of the spectru
iends on non
e children at t
is staffing.  Th
allenge to find

t School child
h the School D
South School

rict also offer
an enroll in da

nd after care fo
mes and activit

rogram Stre
ated to allow w
ver it has evolv
lay, indoor fin
between 7:00
get a head sta
ies. The Scho

e school year.
f the school se

greatest streng
pate in more e

Contractor
rogram Manag
programs are

mental staff w
he school year

eas of Grow
for Kids Club
um (5-6th gra
-school days.
the older ages
he Kid’s Club
d qualified sta

dren are trans
District. This c
l children, enr

s School Days
ay off program

for students w
ties on-site at

engths 
working paren
ved into a pro
ne motor play
0-9:00am and
art on their ho
ol Day Off pro
Children are

etting. 

gths is the new
enrichment op

with ch
shuttle
children
Center.
more op
School D
Starting
every da

The Kid
Associa
initiativ
promot
particip

ger of Youth a
e staffed by Pa

who traditiona
r.

wth
and School D
ders). At this
 Staff is cons

s to participat
follows the D
aff who are w

sported by the
change was m
rollment migh

s Off program
ms which run

who require a
t the Takiff Ce

nts to have ca
ogram that foc
y, and homew
d pick up thei
omework, offe
ogram is popu
able to go on

w location at
ptions at Sout
anging the lo
bus driven by
n to and from
A strength of

ptions of prog
Day Off progr
g in 2016, staf
ay off, and en

d’s Club progr
ation of Park D
ve which supp
te health, well
pants.   

and Arts, over
ark District em

ally help with

Day Off progra
age, children
tantly workin
te in these pro

DCFS recomm
willing to work

e Glencoe Par
made in hopes

ht increase. 

ms on days wh
n from 9-3 and

longer day of
enter or by go

are for their ch
cuses on over

work help.  Par
ir children be
ered a healthy
ular as well b
 many fun fie

the Watts Ce
th School, Wa
cation of Kids
y trained Kid’

m their enrichm
f the School D
grams on non
rams were no
ff offered the

nrollment incr

ram received
Districts throu
ports before a
lness, physica

rsees the Kids
mployees incl
camps in the

ams is caterin
n begin to wan
ng to try to cre
ograms. Anot

mended 1:10 st
k just a few ho

rk District shu
s that by elimi

hen there is no
d include a lu
f activities.  Th
oing on field t

hildren after t
rall health and
rents have the

etween 3:00-6
y snack and p

because it mir
eld trips and s

enter. This allo
atts, and Taki
s Club, staff is
’s Club staff to
ment classes a
Day Off progr
n-school days.
ot offered on e

School Day O
reased drama

a $1000 gran
ugh their Pow

and after scho
al activity, and

s Club and Sc
luding dedica
summer and

ng to children
nt to go home
eate activities
ther challenge
tudent to teac
ours in the mo

uttle bus or th
inating the co

o school for 
unch. There is
hese days are
trips.

their school d
d wellness,
e flexibility to

6:30pm.  Teac
participate in s
rrors a camp d
spend time wi

ows Kids Club
iff Center. Alo
s now offerin
o transport 
at the Takiff 
am this year i
. In the past, 
every day off.
Off program o
atically.

nt from the Ill
wer Play prog
ool programs t
d safety for th

chool Day Off
ated Kid’s Clu
d work school

n who are on t
e afterschool a
s and program
e with Kids Cl
cher ratio.  It
orning and ar

13

he
ost of 

s also
e

day

o
chers
small
day
ith

b
ong
g a 

is

on

linois
ram
that

heir

f
ub

day

the
and

ms to 
lub 
has

re



able to be
because D
staff this p

Staff is ho
staff will i
grade will
This woul

Financia
Kids Club
28 childre
enrolled. N
profit was
based on t

School Da
who parti
programm
attributed
School Da

Youth
Program
The Glenc
years.  Kid
Children p
Youth row
such as pr
older. 

Popular
Kid’s Yoga

and Arts,
Center Ma
who teach

gin work at 3
District 35 day
program relie

oping to conti
investigate ha
l remain at th
ld require mo

al/Participa
b participation
en enrolled. In
Net profit for
s $91,220 and
the new Kid’s

ay Off particip
cipated in Sch

ming and in 2
d to more prog
ay off has seen

Fitness
m Overview

coe Park Distr
ds Yoga teach
play yoga gam

wing teaches p
roper form an

Classes/Pr
a has steadily

oversees Kid’
anager overse
hes rowing cla

:00pm in the
y’s off do not a
es on attend th

nue to grow e
aving two loca
he Watts Cente

re Kids Club 

ation Trend
n has seen gre
n 2015 it incr

r Kids Club in
d in 2016-17 o
s Club location

pation has see
hool Day Off p
016 we had o
gram offering
n the same str

Classes

rict has recen
hes the childre
mes and work
participants th
nd pacing. The

rogram Stre
y increased in

’s Yoga.  This
ees the youth
asses on the N

e afternoon. S
always coinci
his high schoo

enrollment in
ations for Kid
er and childre
instructors to

ds
eat increases f
reased to 40 c
creased as we

our net profit w
n; however sp

en a large incr
programming
ur greatest in

gs on days off
rong increase

ntly entered th
en the basics 
on their brea

he basics of r
ese skills can

engths 
popularity si

class is staffe
rowing classe

North Shore a

Staffing has a
de with New
ol. 

Kids Club as
s Club partici
en from 3rd gr
o continue to f

from 2014 to
hildren enrol

ell. In 2014-15
was $136,654
pace will beco

rease from 20
g. In 2015, 36

ncrease to 831
f, over the hol
e going from $

he new youth
of Yoga throu

athing and ba
owing on row
then be trans

nce it began i
is the in
employe
Compan
always l
The you
its incep
each pro
class ave

Progra
Stephan

ed contractual
es, the contra

and is also a ro

also been a ch
Trier High Sc

 it did in the f
ipants. Childr
rade to 6th gra
follow our 1:1

2016. In 2014
lled and in 20
5 net profit w
4.  Staff hopes
ome a concern

014-2015. In 2
69 children pa
1 children par
idays, and on

$4,249 in 201

fitness progr
ugh fun anima
alance to beco
wing ergomete
sferred to the

in the fall of 2
nstructor who
ee through He
ny, has a stron
looking at cre
uth rowing pro
ption also in 2
ogramming se
erage 7 partic

m Staffing/
ni Briskman, t
lly by Helen B

actual program
owing coach f

hallenge for Sc
chool days off

fall. If this tre
ren in kinderg
ade will be at
10 ratio. 

4 our Kids Clu
016 it increase

was $92,281. I
s to continue
n for continue

2014, there w
articipated in
rticipating. Th
n spring break
14-15 to $17,3

ramming area
al poses and m

ome aware of t
ers. The class

e water as part

2016. The stre
teaches it, a c

elen’s Perform
ng yoga backg

eative ways to
ogram has be
2016. Two cla
ession, both t
cipants per cla

/Contracto
the Program M
Boris.  Paul G
m instructor i
for New Trier

chool Day’s of
f, and many o

end continues
garten throug
the Takiff Ce

ub program h
ed to 69 child
n 2015-16 net
this positive t
ed growth.  

were 378 child
School Day O

his huge jump
k.  Net profit f
331 in 2016-17

a in the past fe
movements. 
their bodies.
 teaches skills
ticipants grow

ength of this c
contracted 
ming Arts 
ground and is
enhance the

een popular si
asses are offer
the youth and
ass per sessio

or
Manager of Y

Goedjen the Ta
is Sandy Culve
r High School

14

ff
of the

s,
gh 2nd

nter. 

had
dren
t
trend

dren
Off
p is 
for
7.

ew

s
w

class

s
class.

ince
red
d teen
on. 

Youth
akiff
er
l.



15

Challenges and Areas of Growth
Staff is still working through the logistical and organizational challenges that come with a new market of 
program offerings. Staff continues to plan for how many types of youth fitness classes we will be offering, 
along with offering different level options for students. These classes have started off strong, but growing 
the program will be a challenge due to is “small niche” perception of these activities. The Park District will 
work to find new days and time slots that may provide for increased participation. 

Conclusion 
General Recreation programming continues to be a constantly evolving area of the Park District.  The 
landscape of this programming area saw a large change with the transition to full-day kindergarten for the 
Glencoe School District 35.  Many programs such as Kinder Culture and Kinder Concoction, which were 
very popular classes, were either rebranded to target a younger audience, rescheduled to serve 
kindergarteners after a longer day of school, or eliminated due to other competing programs offered at the 
same times.  Despite this change, staff remains committed to constantly evaluating the current program 
portfolio to keep established classes exciting, rebrand classes in decline, or eliminate classes that are no 
longer viable and replace them with new offerings capitalizing on popular trends across a number of 
different disciplines.  

Across all of these programs, a major focus is placed on customer service and participant feedback.  The 
Glencoe Park District takes great pride in providing a personalized and enjoyable experience for program 
participants that focuses on ease of registration, accommodating enrollments whenever possible, and high 
quality instruction.  Staff uses participant feedback via end of session survey to continuously improve 
programs. The current focus is to improve instructor communication to parents about what children are 
doing during programming times.  Staff has encouraged both contractual and in-house employees to 
increase communication via pre-program emails.  In program updates about activities scheduled and 
participant progress, and wrap-up communication at the end of each session.   



16

Appendix A – Financial Data

$65,166 $71,233
$87,689

$43,430 $40,759
$59,759

$0
$20,000
$40,000
$60,000
$80,000

$100,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

Athletic Net Profit

Classes Leagues

$31,173

$39,005

$34,879

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

Fi
el

d
Re

nt
al

Re
ve

nu
e

Fiscal Year

Field Rental Revenue

$29,560

$46,020

$56,771

$0
$10,000
$20,000
$30,000
$40,000
$50,000
$60,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

Teen Program Net Profit



17

$35,994

$48,924 $49,452

$0

$10,000

$20,000

$30,000

$40,000

$50,000

$60,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it
Fiscal Year

Ceramics/Visual Arts Net Profit

$64,700
$73,313

$54,458

$0

$20,000

$40,000

$60,000

$80,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

Performing Arts Net Profit

$23,781
$28,611

$24,785

$0
$5,000

$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000
$35,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

STEM Class Net Profit



18

$19,962

$9,186

$25,196

$0
$5,000

$10,000
$15,000
$20,000
$25,000
$30,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

General Interest Class Net Profit

$92,281 $91,220

$136,654

$4,249 $10,049 $17,331

$0

$50,000

$100,000

$150,000

2014 15 2015 16 2016 17

N
et

Pr
of

it

Fiscal Year

School Day Off & Kid's Club Net Profit

Kid's Club School Day Off



Appen
The follow
collected o

ndix B – P
wing survey re
over the last y

Participa
esults include
year in spring

ant Surve
e participant f
g 2016, summ

ey Result
feedback for a

mer 2016, fall 2

ts
any general re
2016, and win

ecreation pro
nter 2016-17.

gram from su

19

urveys



20

Appendix C – Program Responsibility Chart 

LIZ VISTEEN 
Adults/Seniors/Special 
Events/Teens/ 
Volunteers/Interns 
Adult Ceramics  
Adult Cooking 
Adult Day Trips 
Adult/Jr. High Cooking & 
Baking 
Adult Improvisation 
Adult Workshops / Programs 
Babysitter Training Course 
Ballroom Dance 
Breakfast Club 
Cardboard Regatta 
Clay Play 
Concerts / Tots-n-Tunes 
Cookie Decorating 
CPR/AED and First Aid 
Dad & Daughter Dance 
Dog Obedience 
Earth Day 
End of Summer Fire Party 
Floral Design 
Fourth of July 
Glencoe Comm. Garden 
Liaison 
Halloween Party / Boo Bash 
Harvest Fest 
Internships 
Jr. High Beach Bash
Jr. High/Teen Programs 
Mah Jongg 
Mom/Son Date Night 
Mommy & Me Tea 
Painting - Jr.High/Adults 
Park-n-Play
Photography – Jr. 
High/Adults 
Senior Programming 
Spring Egg Hunt 
Tot Clay Play 
Volunteer Program 
Watts Below Zero 
Wheel Throwing/Youth 
Ceramics 
Youth Ceramics 

CHRIS PIETRINI
Athletics, plus camps 
Action Quest 
Adult Softball 
After School Soccer & 
Basketball 
Baseball (GBA) 
Basketball 
Beach Volleyball CAMP 
Counselor in Training 
Cricket
Dodgeball
Fencing 
Field Rentals 
Flag Football 
Floor Hockey  
Frisbee Golf 
Fun with Football 
Hot Shots programs 
Karate (Pride Dojo)  
Lacrosse  
Little Dribblers 
Little Sportsters 
Mini Majors/IL Baseball 
Academy 
Pee Wee Sportsters 
Redline Athletics Sports 
Training 
Rugby 
Snag Golf 
Soccer Camp 
Soccer (AYSO) 
Sports & Sorts 
Tennis 
Tennis Camp 
Tumbling
Volleyball Clinics 
Wide World of Sports 
Preschool

PAUL GOEDJEN 
Takiff Center Manager 
Rowing 

STEPHANI BRISKMAN 
Kindergarten/Youth
Enrichment, plus camps
After School Art Club 
Amazing Art 
Amazing Minds 
Ballet 
Broadway Bound 
Camp Adventure/PM/Ext. 
Day
Cheerleading 
Chess Camp 
Chess Scholars 
Computer Explorers Classes 
Crafting with Kim 
Dance2Xcel 
Fantasy Dance 
Hip Hop 
Jazz/Lyrical Dance 
Jr. High Improv 
Kids Club 
Kids Yoga 
Kinder Footlilghters 
Kindergarten Hip Hop 
Little Footlighters 
Mad Science 
Magic Class 
Mitey Movement 
Nature Camp 
Piano Lessons 
Play-Well Tek/Jr. 
Engineering 
Preschool Hip Hop / Jazz 
Funk 
School Days Off 
Sticky Fingers 
Summer’s End Mini Camp 
Sun Fun Camp / PM / Ext. 
Day
Sunshine Arts & Crafts 
The Joy of Creativity Classes 
Tiny Ballet 
Tiny Footlighters 
Tiny Hip Hop 



DRAFT

MINUTES OF JUNE 6, 2016 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 

999 GREEN BAY ROAD, GLENCOE, ILLINOIS  60022 

The meeting was called to order at 6:25 p.m. and roll was called. 

Committee Members present:  Staff present: 
Dudley Onderdonk, President Lisa Sheppard, Executive Director/Secretary 
Lisa Brooks, Vice President Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/HR
Josh Lutton, Treasurer Chris Leiner, Director of Parks/Maintenance 
Stefanie Boron, Commissioner Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation/Facilities 
Steve Gaines, Commissioner Erin Maassen, Manager of Marketing/Comm. 

Members of the Public in Attendance who Signed In or Spoke:  There was no one who 
signed in or spoke. 

Park Tour:  The group began a tour various parks starting from Takiff Center traveling 
via Park District bus to the Parks Maintenance area, Old Elm and Park Place Park, 
Milton Playground, Clara Dietz Bird Sanctuary, sports fields at West Park, Vernon and 
Jefferson Park, sports fields at Watts Park, Robert Every Wildflower Sanctuary, 
Woodlawn Park, Shelton Park, Lakefront Park, Old Green Bay Linear Parks including 
the sculpture, Lincoln Drive and Green Bay Park, Park 15n Women’s Library Club and 
Linear Park along Green Bay Road and ending the tour at the Takiff Playground. 
Discussion ensued at all sites. 

Adjourn: Commissioner Lutton moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
Commissioner Brooks seconded the motion, which passed by unanimous voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

_______________________
Lisa M. Sheppard 
Secretary



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE No. 871

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE OR OTHER CONVEYANCE OR 
DISPOSAL OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE 

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

 WHEREAS, the  Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois (“Park District”) owns 
personal property used in connection with the operation of the Park District and described 
as follows:

Asset Tag  Description      Serial Number 
A2012004  Printer-HP DesignJet 130R   MY21618011 
A2005056  Fence 4’      N/A 
420006270032 Swing 4 Seat      N/A 
420006270033 Bouncer Car      N/A 
420006270034 Group Minor Park Equipment   N/A 
420006270018 Swing Bench      N/A 
420006270020 Drinking Fountain     N/A 
A2006026  Playstructure      N/A 
420007010010 Swing 3 Seat      N/A 
420007010011 Bouncer Horse     N/A 
420007260003 Bouncer Motorcycle     N/A 
420006290014 Club Car      KG0403-363093 
A2008009  Gas Grill      N/A 
420004150013 Ice Maker      EC500HAPB1 
420004150015 Ice Cream Freezer     N/A 
420006290048 Picnic Table w/ Umbrella    N/A 
420006290049  Picnic Table w/ Umbrella    N/A 
420006290050  Picnic Table w/ Umbrella    N/A 
A2006025  Recycling Containers, 2    N/A 
A2007002  Planter, 36 Inches     N/A 
A2012006  Outdoor Table Umbrella    N/A 
A2014058  Garbage Boxes – Wooden/Multiple  N/A 
420006270016 Swing 4 Seat      N/A 
420006270017 Group Minor Park Equipment   N/A 
420006210031 Group Minor Park Equipment   N/A 
420006210032 Backstop      N/A 
420004140035 Lift 2 Post Vehicle     AFH-90-B 9000LBS 
420004140036 Power Washer     160-C  |  0979122 
A2011017  Tire Changer      N/A 
A2013016  Saw – 14 Inch Cutoff    176289799 
420004140008 Generator/Welder Onan - 800 Watt   KB066286 
420004140012 Compressor Air Maibo    X-04-E | I1860S 
420004140053 Snowplow Meyer     7.5FT 
420004140054 Snowplow Meyer     7.5FT 
420004140056 Beach Raft      N/A 



420007260004 Mower Walk Behind Toro    N/A 
A2005002  Pruner Maibo     SE-6B 
A2005055  Seed Spreader Lely     5268 
A2007017  Leaf Blower      P10012005228 
S2009007  Spray Gun – 48 GPM 800 PSI   N/A 
A2014041  Snow Pusher/Plaw-Skid Steer Attachment 8’ N/A 
420004140044 Aerifier Verti-Drain     105-145 | 22479 
A20040008  Tractor w/Plow, Finisher Smithco 42-000D Super Star 4908 
A20040009  2004 SupaTurf Field Sprayer   Easy Mix 067  
A20040011  Trimmer      15206010014 
A2006018  Rotary Life 6000 LBS    R-RJ6000 
A2008008  Equipment Life 7000 LBS Max   N/A 
420006270025 Swing Bench      N/A 
420006270026 Swing 4 Seat      N/A 
A2007014  Water Bike and Carrier    N/A 
A2009009  Kawasaki Jetski Trailer Triton LTWC1      4TCSM11168HC36431 
A2009010  Kawasaki 2008 Jetski    KAW70496T708 
420006220038 Swing 4 Seat      N/A 
420006220039 Group Minor Equipment    N/A 
420007010027 Sailboat – Barnett      140D 
420007010028 Sailboat – Barnett     140D 
A2009009  Trailer for Kawasaki Jetski Triton LTWC1    4TCSM11168HC36431 
A2009010  Jetski, 2008 Kawasaki    KAW70496T708 
A2010011  Sailboat Barnett with 8’ Trailer   1400 
N/A   Sailboat – Hobie 16     CCMS1568M848 

hereinafter known as the “Property”; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8-22 of the Park District Code (70 ILCS 1205/8-
22)(“Code”), every park district is authorized to sell or convey any personal property that 
in the opinion of three-fifths of the members of the Board of Park Commissioners then 
holding office is no longer necessary, useful to, or for the best interests of the park 
district, in any manner that they may designate and with or without advertising; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Park Commissioners of the Park District (“Board”) has 
reviewed a staff report finding that the Property is no longer necessary, useful to or for 
the best interests of the Park District and recommending to sell or otherwise convey in 
the following manner:  to trade, otherwise convey, or dispose. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, as follows: 

Section 1. The Board finds that all of the recitals contained in the preamble to 
this Ordinance are true and correct and does hereby incorporate them in this Ordinance 
by this reference. 

Section 2.  The Board finds that the Property is no longer necessary, useful to or 
for the best interests of the Park District and declares it to be for the best interests of the 
Park District and its residents to dispose of in the following manner:  by trade in subject 



to the execution by the purchaser of an appropriate instrument whereby the purchaser 
acknowledges that the purchaser is purchasing the Property used, as is, without any 
warranties of any kind whatsoever, assumes all liabilities in connection with the 
Purchaser’s use of the Property, and releases, indemnifies and holds harmless the Park 
District and its park commissioners, officers and employees against and from any and 
all such liabilities or by trade in, or disposal. 

Section 3.  The Board authorizes and directs the Executive Director of the Park 
District to take such action necessary to sell, or otherwise convey or dispose of the 
Property as herein authorized. 

Section 4.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect after its adoption as 
provided by law. 

Adopted this 20th day of June 2017 by the affirmative roll call vote of three-fifths of the 
members of the Board of Park Commissioners as follows: 

Ayes:     
Nays:
Abstentions:
Absent:                                                                                              

     

 Dudley Onderdonk, President 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
 Glencoe Park District 

 ATTEST: 

     

 Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
 Board of Park Commissioners 
       Glencoe Park District 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of Ordinance 
No. 871: 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING AS SURPLUS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE SALE, CONVEYANCE OR DISPOSAL 

OF SURPLUS PERSONAL PROPERTY OF THE 
GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT, COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 20th

day of June 2017. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 20th day of June 2017. 

     

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL]











































V. Financial Report

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting







Glencoe Park District
Monthly Financial Analysis
May 2017

As of As of As of
05/31/2015 05/31/2016 05/31/2017

Recreation Department - Programs
Revenues 1,731,733 1,650,886 1,659,016
Wages (103,493) (124,470) (108,561)
Contractual (545,323) (464,347) (491,793)
Supplies (18,511) (21,608) (19,924)
     Net Surplus 1,064,406 1,040,461 1,038,738

Day Care Department
Revenue 205,243 250,581 239,989
Expense (150,723) (157,641) (171,820)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 54,520 92,940 68,169

Beach Department
Revenue 39,033 56,185 50,996
Expense (53,870) (61,571) (54,810)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (14,837) (5,386) (3,814)

Boating Department
Revenue 46,278 56,002 76,134
Expense (23,392) (21,956) (38,212)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) 22,886 34,046 37,922

Beach/Boat Dept. Net: 8,049 28,660 34,108

Watts Department
Revenue 4,629 781 2,113
Expenses (32,900) (27,097) (33,109)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (28,271) (26,316) (30,996)

G & A (Administration)
Revenue (excl G&A Tfr) 7,448 7,350 8,630
Expense (234,525) (230,309) (299,148)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (227,077) (222,959) (290,518)

Parks Department
Revenue 3,050 79 755
Expense (217,497) (231,639) (216,886)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (214,447) (231,560) (216,131)

Rec-Admin/Takiff  Department
Revenues 562,011 579,067 611,142
Expenses (incl. Fund 69 trf) (1,088,507) (652,499) (1,527,532)
     Net Surplus/(Deficit) (526,496) (73,432) (916,390)



VI. Staff Reports

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Glencoe Park District 
Business Department Report 

June 2017 

FY2016/17 Audit 
The final annual audit report has been completed by our auditors, Lauterbach & Amen LLP. 
Staff has included the final audit report, management letter, and related SAS letters to the board 
for their full review for its scheduled discussion at the Finance Committee of the Whole (FCW) 
meeting on June 20 at 6:15 pm. This FCW meeting will allow for board discussion of this 
information with both staff and a representative from Lauterbach & Amen.  The official bound 
copy of the audit report is scheduled to be officially accepted by the board at the June 20 regular 
meeting.  (Final FY2016/17 audited financial statements will be distributed to staff). 

Updated Financial Information/Other 
In addition to the annual audit and related reports, staff has prepared and included the updated 
Fund Balance Summary Report.  Also included, is the preliminary 2016 Final Tax Extension 
summary memo. The annual Treasurer’s Report will be finalized and included for the board in 
the July board meeting packet.  

New Seasonal Staff 
The business office have received most of the beach and camp paperwork to process for all new 
and re-hired seasonal employees. Staff has added/updated/input personnel records, and has 
conducted criminal background checks for all seasonal employees. 

Prevailing Wage Ordinance 
This mandatory ordinance for 2017 is included in your packet and is scheduled for approval at 
the June 20 regular board meeting. 

Beach POS System 
Business office staff worked with other departments in resolving minor issues with hardware and 
RecTrac set-up issues. Staff is happy to report that the POS system is working quite well, and 
credit card payments and scanned passes are working well.  On the first opening weekend, 57% 
of payments at the beach were made by credit card. 

Fitness Membership/RecTrac 
Business office staff are working with recreation staff to brainstorm ideas for the set-up of fitness 
pass types in RecTrac. Once a game plan is determined, sample pass types will be created in the 
demo system of RecTrac for testing purposes and discussion. 

Revised Investment Policy 
As part of the Distinguished Agency accreditation process, staff is proposing to update to our 
current investment policy which was originally written in 1999.  Staff updated the policy and 
utilized samples from several other area park districts.  The proposed new investment policy has 
also been reviewed by our auditors, who have reviewed and approved. 

Submitted by: 
Carol Mensinger, Director of Finance/Human Resources 



Glencoe Park District 
Recreation and Facilities Department 

June 2017 

Recreation Department Report: Michael Lushniak 
Summer is in full swing! The swimming beach opened on Memorial Day weekend with the 
unveiling of the new connected laptop cash registers. With just a few minor IT issues, the rollout 
of this new technology has been a success and very well received by beachgoers. The week of 
June 12 our sailing camp and new aquatics camps kicked off at the boating beach. Registration 
numbers are strong and boathouse staff is looking forward to serving a new group of customers.  

Summer Camp also begins on June 12. All of the camp managers and seasonal staff have been 
hard at work getting ready for the summer camp season. As always, a focus has been placed on 
strong communication with camp parents and participants leading up to camp with emails, parent 
orientation meetings, and of course the camp open house night which took place on June 7. Staff 
has also prepared a detailed training for camp staff focusing on camper safety and creating an 
inclusive camp environment that fosters positive growth in each camper.  

I have also been working closely with Naomi Garvett to test three apps that allow Children's 
Circle teachers to post participant updates via mobile device to parents. Over the last month, 
teachers and group of volunteer parents have been providing feedback through live testing of 
three apps: Brightwheel, Precioustatus, and Tadpoles. After a focus group meeting with teachers 
and parents, it was determined that moving forward, staff will begin the implementation of the 
Brightwheel app, which was very popular with both parents and teachers.  

The recreation team is also gearing up for a great summer of special events and other long-term 
projects. Staff is looking forward to hosting a great July 4 event with a new family mini-golf 
tournament added to the list of activates. Finally, while summer is just getting started, recreation 
staff is finalizing fall programing with the production of the fall program guide.  

Early Childhood Supervisor Amanda Michaels resigned her position prior to coming back from 
maternity leave. Naomi and I are currently interviewing to fill this position. 

Early Childhood: Naomi Garvett
The last day of ELC preschool for the 2016-2017 school year was May 26. It was a very 
successful year, signified by the growth and development teachers have seen in the children 
throughout the school year. 

The end of school has brought many exciting activities to the Early Learning Center. The 4-year-
old classes enjoyed a trip to the Glencoe Public Library this month and the 3-year-old classes 
went on a field trip to Wagner Farm. Hands-on experiences are very meaningful for preschoolers 
and provide lifelong memories. Staff also enjoyed an end of the year bagel breakfast in the 2 and 
3-year-old classes. This event was a great opportunity for parents to come into the classroom and 
celebrate the success of their children. The ELC 4-year-old classroom enjoyed a family picnic to 
celebrate their graduation from the ELC program. It is always exciting to send off our future 
Kindergarten children and wish them luck as they head on to South School and beyond. 



Early Learning Center Enrollment Comparison 

School Year 
(as of 6/6/17) 2017-2018 2016-2017 

2’s classes 20 21 
3’s classes 23 31 
4’s classes 39 27 

Total Students Enrolled 82 7 

Children’s Circle enrollment is currently at 70 children including both full and part-time 
students. By fall 2017, there will be 15 infants enrolled. The Toddlers classroom has 10 children 
enrolled for fall, with a waiting list of three children. The Starfish/preschool (2-3.5 year olds) is 
full with 16 enrolled and the Belugas/preschool classroom has 17 children enrolled.  

Finally, summer camp for the littlest campers begins on June 19. Staff is looking forward to a 
safe and enjoyable summer in the Bears and Kinder Korner camp programs! There are a number 
of exciting field trips and activities planned. Enrollment is similar to 2016 with variation in both 
the Panda and Kinder Korner camps due to demand.  

Early Childhood Camp Enrollment Comparison 

Summer
Enrollment 2017 2016 2015

Teddy Bears 20 19 24 
Panda Bears 25 39 31 
Koala Bears 45 45 29 

Kinder Korner 64 53 40 
Total 154 156 124 

*Capacity of Panda Bear camp has been reduced due to increase in Kinder Korner camp.

Athletics/Sports/Teen Camp: Chris Pietrini  
Staff is looking forward to another exciting summer of Action Quest and Counselor in Training. 
Dave Purcell is the new director for Action Quest camp. Dave spent last year serving as the head 
counselor, the prior two years as a counselor and in the school year teaches physical education 
classes in Schaumburg. Elizabeth Murphy is the new head counselor. Elizabeth will be a junior 
at Holy Cross College in the fall, and this will be her third summer working at Action Quest. 

Teen Camps Enrollment Comparison 

Camp Enrollment Age Group 2017 2016 2015 
Action Quest Grade 6-9 69 68 70 

Counselor in Training Grade 7-10 38 44 28 

Action Quest enrollment has held steady the past three summers and revenue is up slightly over 
2016. New field trips for Action Quest include a White Sox game, Parkour, Hot Ground Gym, 
and Bartlett Waterpark. Many of the new field trips were inspired by last year’s camp 
participants, collected during end of camp evaluations. This year the Counselor in Training 
program will only be taking students in grades 7-10 as opposed to accepting 6th graders as in past 
summers. The focus of this program will be shifting into a more educational setting, where staff 
is putting more emphasis on developing future Glencoe Park District camp staff leaders.  



Staff has successfully scheduled all field space, including GBA and AYSO usage, using the 
RecTrac facility rental module. This is the first spring that RecTrac has been used to ensure that 
fields are always ready for renters and there are no double bookings. By accounting for all uses 
in RecTrac staff is better able to see field usage patterns and maximize opportunities for rentals. 

Youth & Arts: Stephani Briskman 
Summer’s Beginning runs from Monday, June 12 through Friday, June 16. The 40 campers 
enrolled in this program will travel to Pinstripes in Northbrook, Laser Quest, and Nickel City as 
well as have a water play and picnic day at Takiff and take a trip to the Glencoe Beach. 

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure begin on Monday, June 19. The drop off and pick up location are 
at Park 7n, which is on the corner of Franklin and Maple Hill. Last season, this location was 
changed due to a construction project taking place on Old Green Bay Rd. New field trips for Sun 
Fun and Camp Adventure include Hot Ground Gym, The Oasis Water Park, Madagascar at the 
Chicago Shakespeare Theatre, and The Putting Edge. Registration for Sun Fun and Camp 
Adventure continues, but as of June 9, 2017 enrollment for this summer is strong. 

Sun Fun and Camp Adventure Enrollment Comparison

Camp Enrollment 2017 2016 
Sun Fun Grade 1 46 59 
Sun Fun Grade 2 69 54 
Sun Fun Grade 3 54 51 

Camp Adventure Grade 4 56 31 
Camp Adventure Grade 5 39 22 

Total 264 217 

Orientation for our season staff will be Wednesday, June 14 - Friday, June 16. The counselors 
will learn park district policy and procedure and be trained on ways to keep their campers safe 
and engaged throughout the summer. All seasonal staff will become First Aid/CPR certified by 
the end of the training. Having all seasonal staff First Aid/CPR trained is new for the summer of 
2017, as last year we only camp directors and head counselors were certified. 

Our 78 Broadway Bound participants performed Lion King Jr. on June 3 and 4 at the Winnetka 
Community House. Broadway Bound ticket sales were a total of 718 for four shows with 
additional sales at the door. 

Kids Club had a successful 2016-2017 school year at Watts. Due to the location change from 
Takiff to Watts, Kids Club enrollment increased dramatically. Staff is expecting enrollment to 
continue to increase for the 2017-2018 school year.

Special Events & Active Adults: Liz Visteen 
Doggie Dips took place on Sunday, May 7 and Saturday, May 12. This is the first time we 
offered the event in the spring. Attendance was lower than later summer due to cooler 
temperatures, but those who attended enjoyed beach time for their favorite furry friends before 
the “no pets on the beach” ordinance took effect on May 15.  

The Cookie Decorating Party event on May 20 had sixteen participants and was a fun filled 
event. Since the weather was rainy that day it was the perfect indoor activities. Kids decorated 
cookies with frosting and a variety of toppings including M&M’s, candy eyes, candy mustaches, 
marshmallows, chocolate chips, sprinkles, and colored sugar.  



The GJHP Beach Bash on Thursday, June 8 was a huge success. Over 200 teens from Central 
School attended the event from 2:30-6:00pm. Famos! DJ was on site to get the teens into the 
party mood. Teens also enjoyed dinner which included a choice of a burger, hot dog, or 
quesadilla. Other added treats included snow cones and ice cream. Attendees played games 
including a hula-hoop contest and relay races with inner tubes and jump ropes.    

Spring/Summer Special Event Attendance Comparison 
Event Attendance 2017 2016 
May 7 - Doggie Dip 3 dogs not offered 
May 12 - Doggie Dip 12 dogs not offered 

May 13 - Mommy & Me Tea cancelled not offered 
May 20 - Cookie Decorating Party 16 not offered 

June 8 - GJHP Beach Bash ~200 ~200 

This summer special events are listed below! New this summer, the park district and library are 
marketing collaborative youth concerts under the Tots-N-Tunes banner. Both the library and 
park district have offered youth concerts in the past, however in an effort of collaboration and to 
avoid duplication, this summer these agencies have developed a consistent theme for these shows 
and are jointly marketing and executing them. In June, there are two Tots-N-Tunes concerts. The 
first is at Wyman Green on Friday, June 16 and the other is at Kalk Park on Tuesday, June 27. 

2017 Summer Special Events 

Event Date Time Location 
GJHP Beach Bash Thu, June 8 2:30-6:00pm Beach 

Movies on the Green - Moana Fri, June 9 Dusk Wyman Green 
Park-N- Play (Games & More) Thu, June 15 6:00-7:00pm Lakefront Park 

Tots-N-Tunes - Jim Gill  Fri, June 16 10:00-10:45am Wyman Green 
Cardboard Regatta Sat, June 24 4:00pm Beach 

Tots-N- Tunes - Miss Jamie Tue, June 27 10:00-10:45am Kalk 
4th of July Tue, July 4 All Day  Lakefront Park 

Tots-N-Tunes - Little Miss Ann Fri, July 7 10:00-10:45am Wyman Green 
Movies on the Green - Sing Fri, July 14 Dusk Wyman Green 
Takiff Express Train Day Sat, July 15 10:00am-noon Takiff Center 

Park-N-Play (Water Wonders) Thu, July 20 6:00-7:00pm Kalk Park 
Village & GPD Meet the Fleet Sat, July 22 9-11:30am Village Hall & Public Works 

Tots-N-Tunes - Istvan Tue, July 25 10:00-10:45am Kalk 

Beach Camp Out Fri, July 28-
Sat, July 29 6:00pm-9:00am Beach 

Kids Bucks Show Thu, Aug 3 7:00-8:00pm Kalk Park 
Tots-N-Tunes - Super Stolie Fri, Aug 4 10:00-10:45am Wyman Green 

Movies on the Green - Lego Batman Fri, Aug 4 Dusk Wyman Green 
Park-N- Play (Back to Nature) Thu, Aug 17 6:00-7:00pm Shelton Park 

Beach Camp Out (rain date) Fri, Aug 18-
Sat, Aug 19 6:00pm-9:00am Beach 

Summer Fire Party Sat, Aug 26 7:00-9:00pm Glencoe Beach 



Spring classes concluded at the end of May. Very few classes are scheduled during the summer 
with the exception of adult and youth ceramics.   

Spring Adult and Teen Program Enrollment Comparison 
Program Enrollment 2017 2016 

Adult Ceramics 15 14 
Youth Ceramics 51 53 
Teen Programs 10 10 

Other Adult Programs 16 3 

Takiff Center/Fitness: Paul Goedjen 
Takiff Center hosted a variety of unique rentals during May. These rentals included a Kentucky 
Derby Party, New Trier High School sailing team dinner, and a bar mitzvah dinner.  

On May 30, Takiff Center conducted its monthly fire drill which was supervised by Glencoe 
Public Safety. The drill went extremely well and park district staff received compliments from 
public safety officers. Fire drills are done monthly in compliance with DCFS standards.  

The yearly summer all staff orientation/training took place at Takiff Center on the 25th. The 
training included a short introduction to the park district and an “Amazing Race” format team 
work challenge, which was then followed by pizza in the gym. 

Work continues to be done in regards to the new fitness area that will be opened in the Takiff 
Center this coming fall. Staff researched on utilizing the RecTrac registration system in a way 
that will allow the park district sell and track memberships efficiently. 

In anticipation of the new fitness area at Takiff Center, a new employment opportunity was 
developed. The Takiff Center attendant position was created and will support the fitness area, 
front desk, and operations of Takiff Center. The position will officially be opened for 
applications and hiring completed by mid-June. 

Party and Rental Revenue Comparison 

Type
May

2017 2016 
Birthday Parties $1,250.00 $4,395.00 
Facility Rentals $12,504.43 $10,284.41 

Total $13,754.43 $14,679.41 
Difference -$924.98 

Bobby Collins: Beach and Watts Facility Manager
Glencoe Beach opened for the season on Saturday, May 27. Weather conditions for opening 
weekend were considerable cooler than 2016. The lower temperatures impacted daily admissions 
pass sales, and boat rentals for this opening weekend compared to last summer. The beach 
welcomed Northshore Catering as its new concession vendor. Initial patron feedback has been 
very positive for both the food and service. 

After a year of planning, staff successfully rolled out the new universal pass system for the 
beach. Guests now have the ability to pay using credit cards. Over 50% of all transactions 



processed over opening weekend were paid by credit card. Staff has also found that the pass 
system was implemented has been well received by customers.  

Beach staff training continues until June 12. Lifeguards will have completed over 20 hours of 
training in addition to the 29 hour waterfront lifeguard prerequisite. Beach services staff 
underwent training for the new check-in system and customer service training in addition to 
general staff training. New boat guards and camp instructors will complete a 16-hour US Sailing 
Powerboating class June 9-10, while all boathouse staff completed 3 session of job specific 
training.

Glencoe Beach Services Revenue Comparison 
Revenue (as of June 1) 2017 2016 Variance 
Summer Boat Storage $75,739 $54,448 $21,291 

Boat Rentals $395 $1,290 ($895) 
Trellis Rentals $5,056 $2,550 $2,506 

Daily Admissions $9,350 $15,593 ($6,243) 
Beach Passes $33,659 $34,448 ($789) 

Sailing Camp/Youth Sailing $10,135 $7,456 $2,679 
Aquatics Camp $11,344 not offered $11,344 
Total Revenue $145,678 $115,785 $29,893 

As of June 1, beach financials continue to look healthy overall. With the variable weather, daily 
admissions and pass sales will continue to fluctuate. Summer storage revenue is considerably 
ahead of 2016 partly due to the addition of extra paddleboard racks and the increase storage 
space rates.  

Staff believes this trend will level off, as the majority of revenue has been collected and the 
beach is at maximum capacity for sand spots. The current number of delinquent boats is minimal 
compared to 2016 and staff continues to actively collect from delinquent boaters. 

Submitted by: 
Mike Lushniak, Director of Recreation and Facilities 



Glencoe Park District 
Parks & Facilities Maintenance Report 

June 2017 

Administrative 
I have continued to work with AltaManu relating to West Park, Astor Park, Takiff parking, and 
bluff study projects. Work has begun at West School now that school is out of session. Bids are 
out for the Watts basketball court renovation and the Takiff fitness room. Construction updates 
will appear in the executive director’s report. 

Grounds/Horticulture
The landscape crews have been out in full force completing plantings throughout the district. 
Plant material has been installed at Veterans Park, Hazel Ave overlook, Takiff Center, and South 
& Green Bay Park. Flower beds have been transitioned to summer flowers from spring tulips.  

Staff also completed an early summer heavy grooming of the landscaping beds at Friend Park. 
Dry conditions have worked to our advantage as we have begun to catch up on weeding and 
grass restoration throughout the district although we have had to spend considerable time 
watering.

Parks Maintenance & Construction 
Staff continues to groom baseball fields, soccer fields and the softball field. We have seen a large 
uptick in park use and are balancing the project load against completing routine tasks such as turf 
repairs, emptying trash, and weed control. 

Staff completed the installation of a flow well French drain system in Kalk Park. Five 
underground basins were installed to hold storm water. This should drastically improve the 
drainage conditions along the new pathway during the rainy season. The water slowly dissipates 
into the ground as opposed to directly into the storm sewer system. The parks and facilities teams 
worked together to complete this install in one day.  

At Berlin Park, staff did a second fertilizer application this season and made some irrigation 
adjustments to combat the browning effect of the sod caused by warm weather. 

Some of the sodded areas at Kalk Park have started to brown due to the warm weather. Staff 
continues to water the sodded areas to ensure the health of the grass. Kalk Park does not have an 
irrigation system so sprinklers are used.   

We continue to receive positive feedback about the new dog waste bag stations.  

Facilities 
Seasonal beach preparations have been completed and staff is very proud of the final product. 
Staff repainted the railings on the pier which has significantly improved the appearance. New 
tables have also been installed in this area. Facility staff will soon begin preparations at Watts 
and the Takiff Center for fall and winter seasons. Camp is in full swing and facility custodians 
are continuing to keep our facilities clean. 



Equipment
Staff has begun operating the beach cleaner on weekends. Staff has begun using the new mowers 
and sprayer to improve conditions throughout the park system. We took delivery of the new 
mini-van to be used by the recreation department.  

Personnel
We are now fully staffed in the park department. Dan Edwards has joined our team full-time as a 
parks laborer. He is a recent college graduate with a concentration in parks and natural resource 
management. He was employed here previously as a seasonal maintenance worker. He took the 
position vacated by Tim Petrucci this winter.

Shared Services 
The Village of Glencoe has continued to support the Park District by performing 
maintenance on vehicles. 
I am currently managing tree maintenance on District 35 property with our contractor. 
The school district is reimbursing the park district for all costs. 
We have continued to cut all Village of Glencoe grass per the shared services agreement. 

Submitted by: 
Chris Leiner, Director of Parks & Maintenance 



Glencoe Park District
Marketing/Communications Report 

June 2017 

Social Media/Email
We ended the month of May with 18,726 Facebook impressions (in 2016, we ended the month 
with 49,477 impressions). We now have 1,252 followers on Facebook, 741 followers on Twitter 
and 710 followers on Instagram. Glencoe Beach has 1,370 followers and Watts Ice Center has 
163 followers on Facebook.  

We sent out eight targeted email blasts, primarily focused on special events and beach passes. 

Date Campaign Name Open
Rate

Mobile
Open Rate

Desktop
Open Rate

Click Through
Rate

28 May Try a Specialty Camp 42.40% 67.20% 32.80% 25.20%
26 May Beach opens Saturday 24.90% 60.40% 39.60% 1.70%
20 May Beach Pass Pick UP 64.10% 62.70% 37.30% 8.00%
15 May Cookie Decorating Party 37.30% 59.10% 40.90% 4.00%
7 May Mommy & Me Tea Reminder 36.00% 71.30% 28.70% 4.90%
5 May Beach Early Bird Ends 27.30% 57.60% 42.40% 9.40%
2 May GJK Fun Fair 46.90% 67.60% 32.40% 1.30%
1 May Let's Play Tennis! 24.80% 59.60% 40.40% 8.10%

Beach Marketing/Signage 
I worked with the facilities team to develop new informational signs and update pricing/dates on 
beach signs. I’m also working closely with the beach team to market programs, which included 
placing articles on our new beach cafe in the Glencoe Quarterly, Glencoe News, and Glencoe 
Anchor. In addition to the Facebook/Instagram ad designed to collect email addresses, I placed 
an ad in the Botanic Gardens magazine, which is distributed to all visitors to the garden, as well 
as the Chicago North Shore Convention and Visitor Bureau’s Visitors website, which draws 
regional tourists. We also sent a jumbo postcard to Glencoe Beach season pass holders from the 
last three years, as well as a four-page Summer Sampler to all residents detailing upcoming 
special events and beach classes.  

Fall Brochure 
I am now working on the first draft of the Fall Brochure. It will be mailed to residents in mid-
July. Resident registration will start August 2.  

Glencoe Quarterly 
The summer issue of Glencoe Quarterly sent to residents at the beginning of June. Our four 
pages contained information about the National Gold Medal, Glencoe Beach, commissioner 
elections, and summer events. 



Graphic
Patrick L
Patrick p
photogra
summer e

Gold Me
I wrote th
videograp
actors to 
participan
views are
it reached
include T
movie, g

Submitte
Erin Maa
Manager
and Com

c Design/Soc
Lentz, a fresh
previously w
apher. He is m
event marke

edal Video 
he script for 
pher. Over 1
our ELC an
nts. In less th
e from Park 
d 1,967 peop
Twitter, ema
o to https://y

ed by: 
assen,
r of Marketin

mmunications

cial Media I
hman at Univ
orked as a ca
majoring in n
eting materia

our Gold M
100 Glencoe
nd Kids Club
han a week, 
District’s we
ple (along w
il, Facebook
youtu.be/7PU

ng
s

Intern
versity of Ill
amp counsel
non-profit m

als, as well a

Medal finalist
 residents pa

b participants
the video ha

ebpage and 
with 120 “like
k messenger,
UpKs5f5EM

linois at Chic
lor for the Sk

management 
as updating p

t video and c
articipated in
s, park visito
as garnered 5
76% percent
es/loves” and
, and YouTu

M.

cago, has joi
kokie Park D
and art. Patr

park identific

coordinated t
n the video, 
ors, and after
526 unique Y
t of the view
d 12 shares)

ube “suggest

ined the mar
District and 
rick will be a
cation signs.

three filming
from our Br
r-school pro
YouTube vi

ws are from F
. Other sour

ted” videos. 

rketing team
is a freelanc
assisting us 
.

g days with 
roadway Bou
gram 
ews. 13% of
Facebook, w
rces of traffic
To watch th

m.
ce
with

our
und

f
where
c

he

























SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 
Agenda and Minutes 

Wednesday, May 17, 2017 / 11:00 a.m.
(Please Note: Items in red print require action) 

1. Call to order at 11:06 a.m. 

Roll Call:  Present: Chris Leiner, Carol Mensinger, Mike Lushniak, Liz Visteen, Paul Goedjen, Naomi Garvett 
and Lorise Weil.  Absent:  Lisa Sheppard. 

2.   Review of the Minutes:  The Safety Committee Minutes from April 26, 2017 were reviewed and accepted.   

3. Accident/Incident Review:  Carol reported that there was one (1) Worker’s Comp injury involving a trip 
incident on a hose.  Based on this injury, the Parks Department will be looking to install retractable hoses as 
a preventative measure.  Carol also mentioned that there were two (2) minor accidents/incidents at Watts.    

4. Open Claims:  Chris reported that we had one (1) vandalism property claim at Berlin Park, and one (1) 
Beach stairs claim still open.     

5. Carry Over Items:  

a) Carol asked Chris about lead testing.  Chris stated that an outside firm will be testing all water at the 
Takiff Center, as well as other areas.  This testing will take place sometime in July of 2017.   

b) Lorise mentioned that the coffee machine in the Staff Lounge was on with no coffee in the pot, hence, 
the burner started to burn the bottom of the coffee pot.  Carol has also noticed this.  Lorise will follow-
up with the coffee vendor to see if he can provide us with a replacement machine that doesn’t have 
burners.     

c) Lorise asked about the Safety Manual and asked if we could possibly review the manual to see what 
should and should not be in it.  It was decided by all that the Safety Committee members would 
review the Safety Manual, via section, in October 2017.  It is at that time we will take an in-depth look 
at what should be mutually included in the manual.   

d) Lorise asked if, and when, we will be having a tornado or severe weather drill, in addition to a Facility 
Lockdown drill.  It was decided that Chris, Carol and Mike will follow-up with this question at the next 
A-Team meeting.   

   
6. Certificate of Insurance Information:  Please continue to submit any needed Certificate of Insurance 

information, as requested.  The COIs should be updated on a monthly basis.   

7. New Items:   

a) Chris will follow-up to make sure all Certificate of Insurance forms are in before the summer begins.   
b) Naomi will investigate the possibility of using a “pocket hose” for the playground at Takiff. 
c) Mike asked if there was a list of training recommendations from PDRMA for seasonal staff.  Chris  
     said that there is; the tab under the “Loss Control Review” should have this information.  Carol also  
     mentioned that she will forward Mike some aquatic information, which she received from PDRMA.   

Adjourn:  11:16 a.m.

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, June 21, 2017 at 11:00 a.m.







VII. Executive Director Report

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Season S
The year
are proud
The train
a success
“Pursuit
event had
Glencoe
successfu
other. Th
picture b
staff shir

Captial P
West
of the
Taki
Phase
action
Kalk
flow 
This
rainy
storm
consi

Some
Parks
does

Berlin P
You may
on the qu

Staff Trainin
ly summer a
d to the large
ning included
sful summer
of Park Dist
d teams of st
Park Distric

ul. At the en
he staff go th
elow is mos

rts! 

Project Upd
t and Astor 
e first week 
ff Parking:
e A and B an
n item sectio

k Park: Staff
well French
should drast

y season. The
m sewer syste
iderable amo

e of the sodd
s staff contin
not have an 

ark
y see some b
uick release f

E

ng
all staff orien
est employer
d a welcome
. Then Mike
trict Knowle
taff running 
ct history, pro
d, we enjoye

hrough exten
t of our seas

dates
Parks: Con
of August.   
Staff is requ

nd Concept P
on of the boa
f repaired th

h drain system
tically impro
e water slow
em. The proj
ount compar

ded areas at K
nue to water 
irrigation sy

rown areas a
fertilizer put

Glencoe
Executive D

Ju

ntation/traini
r of high sch
e to the park 
e Lushniak a
dge” event b
throughout G
otocol, and o
ed Pizza and

nsive training
sonal team, p

nstruction beg

uesting appro
Plan B Biosw
ard packet. 
e area that fl
m. Five unde
ove the drain

wly dissipates
ject was com
ed if we had

Kalk Park ha
the sodded a

ystem so spri

at Berlin Par
t down in the

e Park Dis
Director’s
une 2017

ing took plac
hool and coll

district and 
and the recre
based on the
Glencoe solv
other import

d offered the 
g at the begin
proudly wear

gan the week

oval for Tak
wale (TYP).

flooded over 
erground bas
nage conditio
s into the gro
mpleted in-ho
d to do the im

ave started to
areas to ensu
inklers are s

rk. When the
e spring. Tha

strict
s Report 

ce at the Tak
lege-age you
what I like t
ation and fac

e popular sho
ving team ch
tant informat
staff an opp

nning and th
ring their “G

k of June 12

kiff Center P
. More inform

the sidewalk
sins were ins
ons along the
ound as oppo
ouse saving 

mprovement 

o brown due
ure the healt
set out.   

e field opene
at fertilizer w

kiff Center o
ung adults in
to call Lisa’s
cility team d
ow “Amazin
hallenges an
tion to make

portunity to g
hroughout th
Get Your Pla

2 with an exp

Parking Conc
mation is inc

k at Kalk Pa
stalled to ho
e new pathw
osed to direc
the park dis
through a co

e to the early
th of the gras

ed it was a d
was used up 

on May 25th.
n the commu
s top 10 item
developed a 
ng Race”.  Th
nd learning a
e their summ
get to know 

he summer. T
ay On” summ

pected end d

cept Plan A; 
cluded in the

ark by install
old storm wa
way during th
ctly into the 
strict a 
ontractor.

y warm weat
ss. Kalk Park

deep green ba
and then the

 We 
unity.
ms for 

his
about
mer

each
The
mer

date

e

ling a 
ater.
he

ther.
k

ased 
e



2

field browned out, however the roots are well established on the sod. Staff did a second fertilizer 
application this season and made some irrigation adjustments to combat the browning effect of 
the sod caused by early warm weather. 

Glencoe Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group 
Glencoe Park District Beach and Lakefront Advisory Group is composed of individuals who 
volunteer in an advisory capacity to ensure beach programs and operations best serve the needs 
of the Glencoe community and beach patrons. The group serves in an advisory capacity to park 
district staff and provides input to the park board on programming, facilities, operation, and the 
natural/built environment. The group meets approximately three times per year, with weekday 
evening meetings that last 60-90 minutes. We are currently looking for volunteers to be 
considered for appointment to the advisory group for a four-year term. Interested individuals 
may download the application on the Glencoe Park District website and submit it to Lisa 
Sheppard at lsheppard@glencoeparkdistrict.com or they may drop the form off at Takiff Center. 
We will be accepting applications until July 30, 2017. 

The next advisory meeting will be Tuesday, July 19 at 6:30pm at Glencoe Beach Sun Shelter #5.

Glencoe French Market 
Glencoe’s Chamber of Commerce, Village, and Park District worked cooperatively with 
Bensidoun Midwest Markets for the second year in a row to offer the Glencoe French Market 
which opened for the season on June 10. The market is open Saturdays from 8:00am-1:00pm. 
until October. 

Fourth of July!
We have been planning for months to have a Fourth of July that is spectacular! We will continue 
to have logistics meetings with the village and Melrose for the event and fireworks.  They are 
instrumental in helping us provide a fun and safe event! 

Along with the event stage at Lakefront Park, for the second year we will have food trucks and 
well as our beach concessioner, North Shore Catering, to the evening festivities.   

We will again host two trolley cars this year to assist with bringing guests to the venue. Pick up 
locations will be available at the train station and the lot by the post office/gas station and 
loading/unloading stations on Longwood Avenue to return them at the end of the evening. 
Additional auxiliary lighting is being brought in. A first aid/missing child station will be located 
at the turnaround at the end of Hazel clearly marked with signage. Public safety will assist us 
with this area from 6:00-10:00pm and the ambulance will be located at this location as well. 
Staffing plans/zones have been identified and a master staffing plan has been developed. A 
master maintenance calendar is in the works and this should allow our teams to work more 
efficiently. Identified areas at Lakefront Park and beach will be staffed beginning at 6:00am on 
July 4 to answer any questions patrons coming to the beach may have. Areas deemed high risk 
security-wise, as well as high traffic areas, will be staffed accordingly.



3

We have once again worked out an agreement with Winnetka Park District that will 
accommodate our pass holders, residents, and nonresidents on the Fourth of July.  A map to the 
appropriate beaches with instructions will be given out to anyone who shows up on July 4th.

Line up for the Fourth of July 
8:00am  Fun Run 
10:00am  Preschool and Family Games at Kalk Park 
11:00am-1:00pm Mini Golf Tournament at Kalk Park 
Noon  Glencoe’s Got Talent at Kalk Gazebo   
2:00pm  Parade (Village event) 
6:00pm   Concessions and Food Trucks  
6:30-9:30pm Live Band: Empty Pockets at Lakefront Park 
9:00pm  Fireworks  

Marketing:  We are getting the word out to the community. 
Glencoe Quarterly 
Spring/Summer Glencoe Park District Brochure - page 32 
Glencoe Park District’s website 
Village of Glencoe’s website 
Big signage at the Halfway House indicating that Glencoe Beach will be closed on July 4 (up 
since opening weekend) 
Banners on the corners of Lakefront Park will be posted a week before the event indicating 
the beach will be closed on July 4 and fireworks in the park. 
A letter was distributed to our neighbors surrounding Lakefront Park notifying of July 4th

street closures. 
A letter was sent to our boaters notifying of the July 4th boating beach closure at 6:00pm, 
relocation of the south side boats, and where to enter the boating beach on July 4. 
E-blasts will be sent weekly leading up to the event. 
Signage will be put up in village kiosks. 
Maps and instructions to beach goers who show up on the Fourth of July that will direct them 
to Winnetka Park District beaches. 

Memorial Day Event 
I would like to thank Commissioner Onderdonk for representing the Glencoe Park District at the 
Memorial Day event sponsored by the Glencoe Patriotic Committee. I would also like to thank 
the parks and maintenance team for preparing the site and setting up the event. 

Children Circle Daycare 
Through three months of the 2017/18 fiscal year, the Children's Circle program has been 
showing a decrease in net surplus compared to the same time last year. While revenue remains 
consistent compared to last year, a number of factors are contributing to the year over year 
difference.

At this time in 2016, the Children's Circle program was not operating an infant room, which 
means the enrollment capacity of the program was higher in 2016; monthly registration fees were 



4

also lower. This is because DCFS ratios for some of the rooms have been lowered due to 
younger age groups in other rooms. At this time last year, 64 of 66 spots were filled. This year 
only 52 of 58 full time spots are filled. Staff is holding a number of spots for children who will 
be moving up from a younger room to an older room in the fall. 

The infant room has been in operation for nine months. While there are 12 participants 
committed to start in that room before the fall, only eight are attending now, so only 66% of 
potential revenue is being collected. Staffing costs are higher in the infant room because during 
naptime, student-teacher ratios cannot be reduced as in other rooms. 

Staffing has also been a challenge. Early Childhood leadership staff has been working to hire 
more part-time teachers, as doing so would allow the frogs room to expand enrollment for an 
additional five spots. That room is currently at 10 enrolled with three on the waiting list. 
However, early childhood leadership staff has not been able to find the highly qualified, 
customer-focused teacher assistants that are essential to the success of this program.  

Staffing levels have changed and current wages have increased from last year. Based on the Hay 
Group salary study done in 2014, it was identified that full-time daycare teacher’s wages were 
below comparable positions in other agencies. Because of that, two pay adjustments have been 
given to full-time daycare teachers over the past two years and part-time staff received a 5% 
raise over this time last year. Because of federal labor mandates (FSLA), full-time daycare 
teachers are also now paid for overtime if they work more than 40 hours in a week.   

There are two more contributing factors to the decrease in net surplus for the daycare program. 
Full-time staff discounts for program participation in daycare are significantly higher than at this 
time last year. Also, there were two costly equipment items budgeted for and purchased in this 
fiscal year that were not budgeted or purchased at this time last year. Those items were more 
strollers and iPads for the implementation of a daycare parent communication app.

Staff is confident that revenues will remain consistent with last year and may continue to 
increase as enrollment numbers rise and routine fee increases take place in the fall. While 
staffing costs will increase over last year, staff will continue to work to manage staff and other 
expenses prudently to meet budget expectations. Staff has also implemented additional 
registration procedures to limit loss of revenue due to people holding spots in the program 
without attending. An excerpt from those procedures are below.

A participant may hold a spot in Children’s Circle for up to 9 months (see early registration) 
without paying a monthly fee or attending the program, unless a waitlist exists for that class. If a 
space in a classroom is being held for someone who is not of age to begin that program yet, or 
chooses not to begin the program, 50% of the monthly fee will be required if there is another 
participant who wishes to register and begin attendance in the program immediately. The 
participant wishing to hold a spot will be given the option to pay 50% of the required monthly 
fee beginning immediately, or remove themselves from the program and be added to the end of 
the waitlist. 



5

Room 2016-17 Pricing 2017-18 Pricing Change 
Jellyfish $1880/$1974 $1936/$2003 3% increase 

Frogs $1795/$1885 $1849/$1942 3% increase 
Starfish $1609/$1689 $1657/$1740 3% increase 
Belugas $1351/$1419 $1392/$1462 3% increase 

Special Projects and Facilities Committee Meeting 
We are recommending holding a Special Projects Committee meeting on Monday, July 10 at 
6:30pm to discuss the Capital Project plan for the next 3 years.

Upcoming Board Meeting Dates 
In the past, we have cancelled the August board and committee meetings if there was no pressing 
business that needs to be approved or discussed. Staff does not anticipate a need for the August 
board meeting.  If the board agrees, then approval of cancelation of the August board meeting 
should occur at the July board meeting. 

Just a reminder to mark your calendar for the 1st Tuesday of the month for Committee meetings. 

Action Items 
A. Approval of Fiscal Year 2016/17 Annual Audit 
B. Approval of Ordinance No. 872: An Ordinance Adopting Prevailing Wage Rates to be Paid 

to Laborers, Mechanics, and Other Workers Performing Construction of Public Works in the 
Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois 

C. Approval of Public Participation Guidelines during Board and Committee Meetings 
D. Approval of Contract with Altamanu for Takiff Center Parking Project 
E. Approval of Plan for Takiff Center Parking Lot to include Concept Plan A, Phase A, & B 

with Concept Plan B Sustainable Element Bioswale (TYP). 
F. Approval of District Park Sign Design 

Submitted by: 
Lisa Sheppard, CPRP 
Executive Director 

Room
Student-
Teacher

Ratio
Age May 2016 

Capacity
May 2016 

Enrollment
May 2017 
Capacity

May 2017 
Enrollment 

Projected
Fall

Enrollment
Jellyfish

(fka-Seals) 1:4 6 weeks - 
12 months 16 16 12 8 12 

Frogs 1:5 12 months - 
24 months 10 8 10 9 10 

Starfish 1:8 24 months - 
36 months 20 20 16 15 16 (4 M/W/F 

spots open) 

Belugas 1:10 36 months - 
kindergarten 20 20 20 20 17 

Total   66 64 58 52 55 



VIII. Action Item A

Approval of Fiscal Year
2016/17 Annual Audit

See bound copies of the
Audit Management Letter and FY2016/17 Annual Audit

delivered to the Board.

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



VIII. Action Item B

Approval of Ordinance No. 872: An
Ordinance Adopting Prevailing Wage Rates

to be Paid to Laborers, Mechanics, and
Other Workers Performing Construction of
Public Works in the Glencoe Park District,

Cook County, Illinois

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
ORDINANCE No. 872 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING PREVAILING WAGE RATES TO BE PAID TO 
LABORERS, MECHANICS AND OTHER WORKERS PERFORMING 

CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WORKS IN THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS

WHEREAS, the State of Illinois has enacted the Prevailing Wage Act, approved 
June 26, 1941, as amended, being 820 ILCS 130/0.01 through 130/12 (the "Act"); and 

WHEREAS,  the Act requires that during the month of June of each calendar 
year the Board of Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District ("Park District") 
investigate and ascertain the prevailing rate of wages, as defined in said Act, in the 
"locality" of the Park District for laborers, mechanics and other workers performing 
construction of public works for the Park District. 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It and It is Hereby Ordained by the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois as follows: 

Section 1: To the extent and as required by the Act, the general prevailing rate 
of wages in this locality for laborers, mechanics and other workers engaged in the 
construction of public works coming under the jurisdiction of the Park District is hereby 
ascertained to be the same as the prevailing rate of wages for construction work in 
Cook County as determined by the Department of Labor of the State of Illinois (the 
"Department") which are in effect on June 5, 2017, a copy of that determination being 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. As required by said Act, any and 
all revisions of the prevailing rate of wages by the Department shall supersede the 
Department's June determination and apply to any and all public works construction 
undertaken by the Park District.  The definition of any terms appearing in this Ordinance 
which are also used in the Act shall be the same as the definitions specified in the Act. 

Section 2: Nothing herein contained is intended to apply nor shall be 
construed to apply said prevailing rate of wages as herein ascertained to any work or 
employment performed on behalf of this Park District except public works construction 
to the extent required by the Act.

Section 3: If any section, paragraph, clause, or provision of this Ordinance 
shall be held invalid, the invalidity thereof shall not affect any of the other provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

Section 4: All Ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the 
extent of such conflict. 



Section 5: The Secretary shall publicly post or keep available for inspection by 
any interested party in the main office of this Park District this determination of 
prevailing rate of wages. A copy of this determination or of the current revised 
determination of prevailing rate of wages then in effect shall be attached to all contract 
specifications.

Section 6: By July 15th, the Secretary shall file a certified copy of this 
Ordinance with the Illinois Department of Labor. 

Section 7: Within thirty (30) days after filing a certified copy of this Ordinance 
with the Department of Labor, the Secretary shall cause to be published in a newspaper 
of general circulation within the area a notice that this determination is effective and 
constitutes the determination of this public body. 

Section 8: The Secretary shall mail a copy of this Ordinance to any employer, 
and to any association of employers and to any person or association of employees 
who have filed their names and addresses, requesting copies of any determination 
stating the particular rates and the particular class of workers whose wages will be 
affected by such rates. 

Section 9: This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 
passage, approval, and publication in pamphlet form as provided by law. 

Passed this 20th day of June 2017 by roll call vote: 

  AYES:    
  NAYS:  
  ABSENT: 

  ______________________   
Dudley Onderdonk, President 
Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST

  ______________________   
Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners 

[SEAL] 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF COOK ) 

SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

I, Lisa M. Sheppard,  do hereby certify that I am Secretary of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Glencoe Park District, Cook County, Illinois, and as such official, I 
am keeper of the records, ordinances, files and seal of said Park District; and,

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing instrument is a true and correct copy of 
Ordinance No. 872: 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING PREVAILING WAGE RATES TO BE PAID TO 
LABORERS, MECHANICS AND OTHER WORKERS PERFORMING 

CONSTRUCTION OF PUBLIC WORKS IN THE GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

adopted at a duly called Regular Meeting of the Board of Park Commissioners of the 
Glencoe Park District, held at Glencoe, Illinois, in said District at 7:00 p.m. on the 20th

day of June 2017. 

I DO FURTHER CERTIFY that the deliberations of the Board on the adoption of said 
ordinance were conducted openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was 
taken openly, that said meeting was called and held at a specified time and place 
convenient to the public, that notice of said meeting was duly given to all of the news 
media requesting such notice, that said meeting was called and held in strict 
compliance with the provisions of the Open Meetings Act of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and with the provisions of the Park District Code of the State of Illinois, as 
amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the provisions of said Act and 
said Code and with all of the procedural rules of the Board. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the 
Glencoe Park District at Glencoe, Illinois this 20th day of June 2017. 

Lisa M. Sheppard, Secretary 
Board of Park Commissioners
Glencoe Park District

[SEAL] 











































VIII. Action Item C

Approval of Public Participation Guidelines
during Board and Committee Meetings

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

TO:

FROM:

SUBJEC

 DATE: 

CC:

As part o
participat
and did n
Our lawy
did show
portion c
different
said.   

This guid
feel no n
this polic

A copy o

Recomm
committe

coe Park Distric

 BOAR

  LISA 

CT: PUBL

COMM

 JUNE

 JENN

of our review
tion guidelin

not have a m
yers recomm

w for a meetin
could last 90 

issue, the m

deline merely
ew informat
cy in place it

of the public 

mended Motio
ee meetings 

ct / 999 Green

 INT

RD OF COM

SHEPPARD

LIC PARTIC

MITTEE M

E 12, 2017 

NY RUNKEL

w of policies 
nes during bo

maximum tim
mend an appr

ng and all w
minutes. W

majority of tim

y gives the b
tion is going
t is difficult t

participation

on:  To appr
as presented

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

MMISSIONE

D, EXECUT

CIPATION G

EETINGS 

L

for Distingu
oard and com

me limit for p
roved time li

wanted to spe
While this may

me this happ

board a chan
 to be shared
to end the pu

n guideline i

rove of publi
d.

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMO

ERS 

TIVE DIREC

GUIDELINE

uished Accre
mmittee mee
public comm
imit. This is 
eak the maxim
y be fine if e
pens the info

nce to end pu
d. The board
ublic comme

is attached.

ic participati

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

ORANDUM

CTOR  

ES DURING

editation, we
etings were n

ment during b
important, f
mum 3 minu
each citizen 
ormation is a

ublic comme
d can waive t
ent section o

ion guideline

5-3030 / fax (

M

G BOARD A

e noticed tha
never officia
board or com
for example,
utes the Pub
wanted to co

a repeat of w

ent after 30 m
this time lim
of the meetin

es during bo

847) 835-4942

AND   

at our public
ally approve

mmittee meet
 if 30 citizen
lic Commen
omment on a

what is alread

minutes, if th
mit, but witho
ng. 

oard and 

2

ed
tings.
ns
nt
a

dy

hey
out







VIII. Action Item D

Approval of Plan for Takiff Center Parking
Lot to include Concept Plan A, Phase A & B
with Concept Plan B Sustainable Element

Bioswale (TYP)

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

TO:

FROM:

SUBJEC

DATE: 

CC:

On May 
Center pa
Concept
sustainab
design or

Commiss
the board
bioswale

Staff furt
alternativ
bioswale

Recomm
To appro
also inclu
designing

coe Park Distric

 BOAR

  LISA 

CT: TAKI

 JUNE

16, we cond
arking conce
Plan A whic

ble elements 
r permitting 

sioner Lerma
d the recomm
 (TYP) by p

ther recomm
ve bid to incl

by the staff

mended Motio
ove Concept 
ude designin
g the Concep

ct / 999 Green

 INT

RD OF COM

SHEPPARD

IFF CENTER

E 12, 2017 

ducted a Spec
ept plans. R
ch included 6
added.  The
fees.  Those

an, directed 
mendation to
phase A.

mends that th
lude concret

f parking are

on:
Plan A: Pha

ng the pathw
pt Plan B bio

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

MMISSIONE

D, EXECUT

R PARKING

cial Projects
Representativ

6 phases of i
ey also includ
e documents 

staff based o
o approve Co

e concept in
te.  Staff also
a as an altern

ase A and B 
ways in aspha

oswale by th

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMO

ERS 

TIVE DIREC

G

s and Faciliti
ves from Alta
improvemen
ded opinion 
are attached

on the discus
oncept Plan A

nclude design
o recommen
native bid.

and Concep
alt with an al
he staff parki

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

ORANDUM

CTOR 

ies Committ
amanu and S
nts and Conc

of probable
d.

ssion of the 
A: Phase A 

ning the path
nded designin

t Plan B bio
lternative bid
ing area as a

5-3030 / fax (

M

tee in regard
SMP Group 
cept Plan B w
e costs that d

Committee,
and B and C

hways in asp
ng the Conce

swale (TYP
d to include 

an alternative

847) 835-4942

s to the Taki
presented

which includ
did not includ

 to advance 
Concept Plan

phalt with an
ept Plan B 

) by phase A
concrete an

e bid.   

2

iff

ded
de

to
n B 

n

A. To 
d















VIII. Action Item E

Approval of Contract with Altamanu for
Takiff Center Parking Project

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

To:  Boar
From: L

SUBJEC

On Dece
several p
renovatio
parking l
master pl
services. 

Therefor
to the sco
$72,000.
the follow

Recomm
To appro
Takiff Ce
fees for t
services a
executive

coe Park Distric

rd of Comm
Lisa Sheppard

CT:  Request 

mber 13, 20
projects. In th
on. At this tim
lots and cons
lan was com

e, the previo
ope as direct
The added s

wing additio

mended Mot
ove the contr
enter parking
the project to
and meeting
e director to 

ct / 999 Green

missioners
d and Chris 

for Architec

16, the boar
hat contract, 
me, the scop
struction des

mpleted in Ap

ously approv
ted by the Bo
scope of the 

ons to the sco

tion: 
ract with Alt
g/pathway p
o $72,000. N
gs as outlined

fully develo

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

Leiner

ctural Design

rd approved a
the sum of $

pe of the agr
signs on one 
pril, new con

ved sum of $
oard. The tot
project repr

ope: walking

tamanu Inc. f
project in the
Note, this doe
d in their pro
op and execu

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

n Services –

an inclusive 
$30,608 was
eement only
parking are

ncepts were 

30,608 is ins
tal fee for de

resents an inc
g path, secon

for additiona
e amount of $
es not includ
oposal. The b
ute the terms

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

– Takiff Park

 contract for
s earmarked 
y covered co
a. After the 
added to the

sufficient to
esign service
crease of $4

nd parking lo

al architectu
$41,392 whi
de additional
board furthe
s of the contr

5-3030 / fax (

Dat

king Project 

r Altamanu e
for the Taki
nceptual des
Takiff/Reisn

e scope of Al

 complete th
es for the ap

41,392. The a
ot, and susta

ural design se
ich brings th
l specified p

er directs and
ract. 

847) 835-4942

te:  June 14, 

encompassin
iff parking lo
signs on two
ndorf Field 
ltamanu’s 

he entire proj
pproved scop
added fees c

ainable eleme

ervices for th
he total desig
rofessional
d authorizes 

2

2017

ng
ot

o

ject
pe is 
cover
ents.

he
gn

the



 l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g       
  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Altamanu Page 1 of 7 

May 18, 2017

Mr. Chris Leiner
Director of Parks and Maintenance
Glencoe Park District
999 Green Bay Road
Glencoe, Illinois 60022
cleiner@glencoeparkdistrict.com

Re: Takiff Center Parking Lot Master Plan Improvements for Phase A and Phase B
Landscape Architecture and Civil Engineering Services
Construction Documents and Construction Observation

Dear Chris:

The Glencoe Park District (GPD) has requested a proposal from the Altamanu and SMP team to prepare
Construction Documents and provide Construction Observation Services for Improvements to Phase A
and Phase B of the Takiff Center Parking Master Plans prepared by Altamanu/SMP in May of 2017. Also
to be included in the improvement project will be of the site and the large northern bio swale as an add

We understand the scope to include:
Phase A parking lot at the middle east portion of the site, to be located where the old skate park
pavement is now.
Phase B staff parking area in the west portion of the site, widening of the service drive to the
staff parking and maintenance buildings and a loop path.
The small bio swale and plantings (frog pond) shown adjacent to the Phase A parking lot
the larger bio swale and plantings shown at the north end of the site to be included as an Add
Alternate to the project

SCOPE OF WORK/PROJECT PLAN
The following is an outline of the “Scope of Work” to be carried out by Altamanu Inc.
Please note that work to be carried out by Altamanu unless specifically called out.

TASK 1: DETAILED DESIGN DEVELOPMENT & CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
Goals: Finalize relevant design elements and incorporate Client’s comments and produce the final
Construction Documents.

1. Verify existing site conditions using available site data such as surveys, aerial photos,
topographic maps, The Client will furnish Altamanu with an accurate base map, (site survey and



 l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g       
  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Altamanu Page 2 of 7 

topographic map) at a workable scale for the preparation of site improvement construction
documentation. The survey will show existing contours, detailed site features, and existing
utilities to the curb line of adjacent streets. The Client has already provided the design team
with a current topographic map dated March 15, 2017. The team will verify if the extents of the
survey are sufficient for the intended scope of improvements and advise the Client if any further
topographic information is required.

2. Review available Zoning/Landscape Code.

3. Review potential MWRD permit requirements for the improvements

4. Prepare Design Development/Construction Documents for a 60%, 90% and 100% review with
the Client. The Construction Documents will include the following (it is possible that some of
these items will be shown on the same plans):
• Detailed Final Landscape Plan (1”=20’)
• Layout and Dimension Plan (1”=20’)
• Enlarged Site/Landscape Plans as needed for clarity.
• Site Detail Sheets Layout/Dimensioned of Related Special Site Elements
• Drainage/Utility Details, utility connections, (SMP)
• Grading and Drainage Plan and Details (SMP)
• Planting Details, Plant Schedules and General Notes
• Related Technical Specifications (Altamanu and SMP)

5. Continue to field verify existing conditions as necessary to prepare the construction document
set.

6. Coordinate design decisions with Client throughout the DD and CD process.

7. Coordinate Landscape Plan with Civil Engineer’s Grading/Drainage and Utility Plans.

8. Revise Opinion of Probable Costs to reflect adjustments to Landscape/Engineering Plans.

9. Submit 60% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review.

10. Meet with Client to review 60% Construction Set. (Meeting 1)



 l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g       
  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Altamanu Page 3 of 7 

11. Coordinate with Village of Glencoe and MWRD (if necessary), and verify permit submission
requirements.

12. Submit 90% Construction Set and Outline Specifications to Client for review.

13. Meet with Client to review 90% Construction Set. (Meeting 2)

14. Make revisions and submit 100% Construction Set and Specifications to Client for final review.

15. Submit Final 100% Construction Documents Package and related Technical Specifications,
including SWPP plan for permit, to Client for review and subsequently for bidding.

TASK 2: PERMITTING, BIDDING & BID ASSISTANCE
Goal: Assist in obtaining appropriate approvals as required for construction. Assist in the packaging and
distribution of construction drawing sets and specifications to selected contractors for pricing. Bids will
be reviewed, assessed and clarified with Client to assist in the selection of a contractor(s). Time tables
and schedules for construction will be established with selected contractors.

1. Assist Client in submitting Permit Set for appropriate approvals and coordinate with Village of
Glencoe on any permit approvals from MWRD. (SMP will manage permit approvals)

2. Provide Client Construction Set prior to bidding for review.

3. Issue addenda as appropriate to interpret, clarify or expand the Construction Documents.

4. Meet with Client to assist in preparation of Bid Packages. Use Site Landscape Construction Bid
Form, cover letter and related addenda to include with Bid/Drawing Package. Distribute
Bid/Drawing Package to contractors on selected list as vetted by team.

5. Assist the Client in conducting a Pre Bid Review Meeting with selected Contractors. (Meeting 3)

6. Assist Client in preparing Bid Analysis for comparison of proposed bids.

7. Assist Client with the selection(s) of appropriate contractors.



 l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g       
  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Altamanu Page 4 of 7 

8. Assist in the preparation AIA/GPD Contract between contractors and Glencoe Park District
(GPD).

9. Develop Landscape Installation Timetable with Client & Contractor.

TASK 3: CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION & PROJECT CLOSEOUT
Goal: Provide on site review and observation of landscape construction related to the Site Landscape
Construction Package and its Related Specifications.

1. Provide on site observation of site and landscape construction related to the Altamanu SMP
Landscape and Engineering Plans and their related elements. Visit site twelve times (12) at
intervals appropriate to the stage of landscape construction to review proper construction
methods and adherence to the design intent. (Site Meetings 4 through 15). SMP/Civil Engineer
will visit the site six times (6) at intervals appropriate to the stage of civil engineering items

2. Make written reports regarding site construction progress for landscape improvements.

3. Provide interpretations and clarifications for the Construction Documents as needed.

4. Review and approve samples of materials and shop drawings and assess change order requests.

5. Review and respond to contractor’s requests for information.

6. Review contractor’s request for payments.

7. Conduct a final on site observation/inspection of Landscape Construction with Client and
Contractor. (Site Meeting 16)

8. Prepare a Final Punch List prior to final acceptance of job.

9. Troubleshoot for 2 months until project closeout. (16 hours)



 l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g       
  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Altamanu Page 5 of 7 

PROFESSIONAL FEES
Fees for the project are broken down by discipline are as follows:

Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu)
• Task 1 & 2 Design Development & Construction Documents &

Permitting, Bidding and Bid Assistance $ 41,945.00
Task 3 Construction Administration & Project Closeout $ 11,495.00

Total Landscape Architecture Fees (Altamanu) $ 53,440.00

Civil Engineering Fees (SMP)
• Task 1 Construction Documents, Bidding & Permitting $ 13,500.00
• Task 2 (Construction Observation) $ 2,800.00
Total Civil Engineering Fees (SMP) $ 16,300.00

Expenses
Estimated Expenses Altamanu $ 1,850.00
Estimated Expenses SMP $ 200.00

Total Expenses $ 2,050.00

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES (Altamanu & SMP) $ 69,740.00

TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES & EXPENSES (Altamanu & SMP) $ 71,790.00

The above estimated fees do not include reimbursable expenses which will be billed at direct expense.
Reimbursable expenses related to this project shall include, but may not be limited to the following:

Transportation/Parking
Reproduction
Special Supplies
Photography

Copies
Messenger/Delivery
Large Scale Scans
Soils Analysis/Consultation

Professional fees and expenses will be billed monthly for work completed and are due within 30 days.

ASSUMPTIONS
All base information (architectural building plans, site survey) will be provided by the Client to
Altamanu.



Page 6 of 7 
l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g        

  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

Site base information will be provided to in a form compatible with AutoCAD 2017 format.
Any services beyond what is outlined above will be considered extra services and will be billed at
our standard hourly rates.
This agreement does not include: soils or environmental studies or property surveys.
This agreement may be terminated by either party 15 days after written notice. Altamanu shall be
compensated for all services performed up to this date.
This agreement becomes an Addenda to our AIA contract document B101, Standard Form of
Agreement between Owner (Glencoe Park District) and Landscape Architect (Altamanu, Inc.)
dated January 18th, 2017

If the aforementioned terms are acceptable to you, we would appreciate the execution of this
document in the space provided below and the return of a copy for our files.

We at Altamanu Inc. appreciate this opportunity to continue working with the Glencoe Park District.

Very truly yours,

Josephine Bellalta, PLA, ASLA, President Altamanu Inc.

ACCEPTED BY:

Signature

Printed Name

Title

Date



Page 7 of 7 
l a n d s c a p e  a r c h i t e c t u r e   +   u r b a n  d e s i g n   +   p l a n n i n g        

  1700 w. irving park rd. + suite 202 + chicago, illinois 60613 + 773.528.7492  t + info@altamanu.com

EXHIBIT A

SMP GROUP DESIGN ASSOCIATES, LLC

CIVIL ENGINEERING PROPOSAL
TAKIFF CENTER, GLENCOE, IL

DATED
MAY 17, 2017



 
SMP Group Design Associates, LLC
165 N. Canal Street, Ste. 804
Chicago, Illinois 60606

Ms. Josephine Bellalta, PLA, ASLA
Altamanu, Inc
1700 W Irving Park Road, Suite 202
Chicago, Illinois 60613
773.528.7492
josephine@altamanu.com

May 17, 2017

Civil Engineering Proposal
Takiff Center, Glencoe, IL

Dear Ms. Bellalta,

We are pleased to provide Altamanu with a proposal for civil engineering services for the development of 
Phase A and B as well as sustainability alternates pertaining to improvements at the Takiff Center located 
within the Village of Glencoe, Illinois. We understand this work to be the first of a multi-phased project to 
develop the Master Plan created by your office. 

The Takiff Center is on a property measuring approximately 11.6 acres in size and located at 999 Green 
Bay Road. The site acts as the Glencoe Park District administrative office as well as the central hub for the 
majority of District programming. Work shall include;

Preparation of construction documents for Phase A of the Master Plan. This includes the 
rehabilitation of the existing asphalt surface that was previously used as a skate park. The new 
area, roughly equal in size, will be for vehicular parking. Phase A also includes the construction of 
a traffic circle, sidewalks, drainage improvements, as well as modifications to the burming near the 
existing playground. As the surface generally slopes from NE to SW, a bio-swale/raingarden will 
be included to capture and infiltrate/retain stormwater.
Preparation of construction documents for Phase B of the Master Plan. This area focuses on the 
area adjacent to the western property line. Here, the driveway will be widened and repaved to 
accommodate additional parking. Drainage will reviewed and added as needed to accommodate
the improvements. A perimeter sidewalk around the existing baseball field will also be added.
Alternate 1 shall be designed and added into the construction documents. This alternate is for the 
design of a large wetland/raingarden at the north end of the baseball field. The raingarden will be 
fed by existing storm sewers that will be modified and re-routed. 

 



We understand that each of the projects will be split into two phases. Phase 1 will include construction 
documents, bidding and permitting and Phase 2 will include construction assistance services.  We 
understand the civil scope of the projects will include assistance with the following;

Takiff Center Parking Improvements
Phase 1: Data Collection, SD, CD, Bidding

Assistance with obtaining a survey update to cover the limits of the project,
Assist with developing a construction cost estimate,
Preparation of a civil grading, and detail plans,
Preparation of site utility plan for stormwater management and sewer tie-in as required,
Staff meetings at 60% (DD), 90%CD, 100% CD, and Bidding
Assistance with the development of details for bio-swales and other green infrastructure being 
considered for the project,
Preparation of bid specifications for civil items as necessary,
Preparation of a SWPP plan for permit application with the Village of Glencoe,
Communication with MWRD as necessary for permit and construction,
Assistance with bid reviews,

Phase 2: Construction assistance services
Review of contractor RFI’s and product submittals for Civil Items
Attend up to six construction observation visits.

This fee proposal is based on our conversations with the Park District at the conclusion of the Master Plan 
presentation and our emails since.

 

P
ag

e 
2



ACCEPTED BY

Date: ____________________

Printed name: ___________________________

Signed name: ___________________________

Title: __________________________________

Schedule
Upon agreement on scope of work and receipt of signed fee proposal, we will commence with the 
preparation of Design Development drawings and correspondence with MWRD. We understand the tight 
schedule and need to start immediately in order to meet the scheduled deliverables.

Compensation
We offer the above services at the fees outlined below. Expenses such as travel, reproductions, supplies, 
public utility atlases, and postage will be invoiced as a reimbursable. An estimate of reimbursable 
expenses has been provided.

Additional Services
Changes to completed documents due to revised input or direction, change of project limits or scope 
and preparation of additional drawings shall be invoiced as an Additional Service. Stormwater 
detention is assumed to not be included as part of this project. Work will not be performed without 
your expressed, written consent.  Estimates for additional services will be provided upon your 
request.

Acceptance
This proposal, with the signature of the appropriate personnel, constitutes acceptance of fee and 
terms as stated herein.  Please return one copy of the signed proposal to me as authorization to 
begin work.

If you have any questions or need clarification on any of the above, please do not hesitate to call. 
We look forward to working with you on this project and appreciate you including us on your team.

Yours truly,

Jerry Pilipowicz, P.E.
Civil Engineer

Principal & Managing Member
SMP Group Design Associates, LLC

j.pilipowicz@smpgroupllc.com

TASK FEE
Takiff Center Parking Improvements
Phase 1: Construction Documents, Bidding and Permitting
Phase 2: Construction Assistance

Subtotal
Standard Hourly & Material Rates
Additional staff level meetings
Additional site construction meeting (with report) – per visit
Attendance at Community/Board/Committee meeting (2 hours)

Reimbursables (estimated)

$13,500.00
$2,800.00

$16,300.00

$200.00
$600.00
$220.00

$200.00

 

P
ag

e 
3



VIII. Action Item F

Approval of District Park Sign Design

Glencoe Park District
June 2017 Board Meeting



Glenc

TO:

FROM:

SUBJEC

DATE: 

CC:

In our M
locations

The Mas
direction
develop c

The reco
again on 
recomme
forward.
largest si
forward b

The draw
discussed

Recomm

coe Park Distric

 BOAR

  LISA 

MAN

CT: PARK

 JUNE

Master Plan, it
s to identify t

ter Plan also
n signage to d
correlating w

mmended pa
June 6, 2017

end that the b
 Next to eac

ized signs ar
by board app

wing on page
d at the June

mended Motio

ct / 999 Green

 INT

RD OF COM

SHEPPARD

NAGER OF M

K ID SIGNS

E 12, 2017 

t was recom
the area as p

o recommend
different par
way-finding

ark signs att
7 at the Com
board adopt 
ch size of sig
re only for K
proval. 

e 2 is the rec
e 6 Committe

on: To appro

 Bay Road / Gl
www.glen

TEROFFIC

MMISSIONE

D, EXECUT

MARETING

mmended that
park district p

ds the establ
rks and key l
signage in th

ached were 
mmittee of th

the attached
gn, staff has 

Kalk, Veteran

ommended p
ee of the Wh

ove the park 

lencoe, IL  600
coeparkdistrict

CE MEMO

ERS 

TIVE DIREC

G AND COM

t we should 
property.   

lishment of w
locations). S
he village. 

discussed in
he Whole me
d document a
indicated wh

ns and Berlin

post structur
hole meeting

ID sign guid

022 / (847) 83
t.com 

ORANDUM

CTOR AND

MMUNICAT

establish bra

way-finding
Staff will be w

n committee 
eeting.  Base
as our park s
hich park wi
n Parks, and 

re moving fo
g.

delines as pr

5-3030 / fax (

M

 ERIN MAA

TIONS

anded signag

signage (mi
working wit

in Novembe
ed on that di
sign guidelin
ill get that si
would only 

orward, base

resented.

847) 835-4942

ASSEN,   

ge at park 

ile markers, 
th the village

er 2016 and
scussion, we
nes moving 
ize sign. The
be used mo

ed on ideas

2

e to 

then
e

e
ving



GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT

Park

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT

 Park

GLENCOE PARK DISTRICT

 Park

95

72

22.75

37.2
30.2

48

15.25

E PARK 

PARK SIGNS
Park signs come three sizes. All are cut into Ash and painted blue (Pantone 540C). 

All signs have rounded corners. 

The Glencoe Park District name is set in Nimbus Sans. The Park name is in Georgia Bold. The size of the 
park name varies with number of characters. 

The distance of the name from the outline should be equal to the
distance of the line from the edge of the sign. The park’s name is centered vertically between

S  

the Glencoe Park District name and the bottom line.

The weight of each sign’s outline should be proportional to the weight
of the lines on the sign’s logo.

COMMUNITY PARK

NEIGHBORHOOD PARK

MINI PARK



quanity: (1) single-sided
size: 72”w x 27 3/4”h
material: 1 1/2”thick redwood
color: pantone 540/white
process: sandblasted/paint
mounting: 6”w x 120”h posts

customer: Glencoe Park District
location: 

work order #: Sandblasted
date: 6.9.17
revision: 00


	Agenda
	Minutes of May 16, 2017 Special Projects & Facilities Committee
	Minutes of May 16, 2017 Regular Board Meeting
	Minutes of June 6, 2016 Committee of the Whole
	Ordinance 871: Surplus Property Disposal
	Voucher List of Bills 5/13-6/16, 2017
	Financial Report
	Business Dept Report
	Recreation/Facilities Dept Report
	Parks/Maintenance Dept Report
	Marketing/Communications Report
	Minutes of May 17, 2017 Safety Committee
	PDRMA Report on Glencoe Park District
	Executive Director's Report
	Action Item A: FY2016/17 Annual Report
	Action Item B: Ordinance 872 Prevailing Wage
	Action Item C: Public Participation Guidelines during Meetings
	Action Item D: Takiff Center Parking Plans
	Action Item E: Takiff Parking Contract with Altamanu
	Action Item F: District Sign Designs

